
This agenda has been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the Hermantown City Council. This document does not 
claim to be complete and is subject to change at any time. 

AGENDA 

Pre-Agenda Meeting Tuesday, January 21, 2020 at 4:30 p.m. 
Large Conference Room 

City Hall - Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

Pre-agenda:  The Pre-agenda meeting is a work session between the City Council 
and City staff to review the upcoming City Council meeting and future meetings.  
The agenda is the same document as the upcoming City Council meeting, but does 
not follow the same format as the City Council meeting.  It is a time for the City 
Council and City staff to have discussions about the agenda items, and asking and 
answering questions.  Traditionally it is not a time for public comment on the 
agenda items, as the public can listen to the conversation and ask questions or 
provide input at the upcoming City Council meeting.   

City Council Continuation Meeting January 21, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

City Hall - Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

Invitation to participate: 
The Hermantown City Council welcomes your thoughts, input and opinions to this 
meeting. The agenda for this meeting contains a brief description of each item to 
be considered, and the City Council encourages your participation. If you wish to 
speak on an item contained in the agenda, you will be allowed to address the 
Council when a motion is on the floor. If you wish to speak on a matter that does 
not appear on the agenda, you may do so during the public comment period 
regularly scheduled and set for the beginning of the meeting.  

When addressing the City Council, please state your name and address for the 
record. Please address the City Council as a whole through the Mayor. Comments 
to individual Council Members or staff are not permitted. Speakers will be limited to 
three (3) minutes. 

Order of discussion 
1. Reading of the resolution title by Mayor
2. Motion/Second
3. Staff Explanation
4. Initial Discussion by City Council
5. Mayor invites public to speak to the motion (3 minute rule)
6. Follow up staff explanation and/or discussion by City Council
7. Call of the vote



This agenda has been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the Hermantown City Council. This document does not 
claim to be complete and is subject to change at any time. 

CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
AGENDA 

Pre-Agenda Meeting Tuesday, January 21, 2020 at 4:30 p.m. 
Large Conference Room 

Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

City Council Continuation Meeting January 21, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers 

Hermantown Governmental Services Building 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS (Council Members may make announcements as needed.)

5. PUBLIC HEARING – (Only when necessary. The rule adopted three minutes per person if
necessary. Any action required after the public hearing will be taken immediately following the
closing of the public hearing.)

6. COMMUNICATIONS

A. 2020-07 Jim Rich, Building Official 
TO:  City Officials 
RE:  2019 Building Permits 

B. 2020-08 Jim Rich, Building Official 
TO:  City Officials 
RE:  Building Permit Comparison 2017-2019 

C. 2020-09 Steve Overom, Overom Law  
TO:  Roger Behrens, MN Management & Budget 
RE:  Essentia Wellness Center - Hermantown 

7. PRESENTATIONS (Department Heads may give reports if necessary.)

8. PUBLIC DISCUSSION (This is the time for individuals to address the Council about any item
not on the agenda. The time limit is three minutes per person.)

9. CONSENT AGENDA (All items on the Consent Agenda are items which are considered routine
by the City Council and will be approved by one motion via voice vote. There will be no
discussion of these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event the item
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered at the end of the Consent Agenda.)

A. Minutes - Approval or correction of January 6, 2020 City Council Minutes and January
7, 2020 Work Session Minutes



B. Accounts Payable – Approve general city warrants from January 1, 2020 through
January 15, 2020 in the amount of $506,839.86

(motion, roll call)

10. MOTIONS

A. Motion to approve/deny the following Liquor License:

The King of Creams 4140 Richard Ave. Ste 400 Wine/Strong Beer/Sunday 

(motion, roll call)

B. Motion to approve the appointment of Samuel Clark to the Planning & Zoning
Commission for a three-year term effective immediately.

(motion, roll call)

11. ORDINANCES

A. 2020-01 An Ordinance Amending Title 2 Of The Hermantown City Code By Amending 
The Official Zoning Map 

Second Reading 

(motion, roll call) 

12. RESOLUTIONS (Roll call will be taken only on items required by law and items requiring 4/5’s
votes, all others can be done by voice vote.)

A. 2019-208 Resolution Approving Final Planned Unit Development For The Arbours Of 
Maple Grove Development  

(motion, roll call) 

B. 2019-209 Resolution Approving Preliminary Plat Of The Arbours Of Maple Grove 
Imposing Conditions On The Approval Of The Final Plat And Authorizing And 
Directing The Mayor And City Clerk To Execute Such Plat Upon The  
Satisfaction Of Such Conditions 

(motion, roll call) 

C. 2020-12 Resolution Awarding Contract For 2020 Ford F350 Chassis To Boyer Ford 
Trucks, Inc. In The Amount Of $36,356.80 And The Truck Body To Truck 
Utilities, Inc. In The Amount Of $28,044.00 Plus Applicable Taxes And Fees 

(motion, roll call) 

D. 2020-13 Resolution Approving Pay Request Number 1 To George Bougalis & Sons, Co. 
In The Amount Of $28,479.63 

(motion, roll call) 



E. 2020-14 Resolution Receiving Bids And Awarding Contract For Section 24 Trunk Sewer 
Spur Improvement District No. 448 In The Amount Of $4,209,784.30 

(motion, roll call) 

F. 2020-15 Resolution Ordering The Closure Of Old Hwy 2 At The Intersection Of Hwy 2 
And Morris Thomas Road 

(motion, roll call) 

G. 2020-16 Resolution Supporting The Authority To Impose A Local Sales Tax To Fund 
Specific Capital Improvements Providing Regional Benefit, To Establish The 
Duration Of The Tax And The Revenue To Be Raised By The Tax, And To 
Authorize The City To Issue Bonds Supported By The Sales Tax Revenue 

(motion, roll call) 

13. RECESS

























CITY OF HERMANTOWN 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
January 6, 2020 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
ROLL CALL:  Councilors Geissler, Nelson, Peterson, Schmidt, Mayor Boucher 
 
CITY STAFF: John Mulder, City Administrator; Bonnie Engseth, City Clerk; Eric Johnson, 

Community Development Director; Kevin Orme, Director of Finance & 
Administration; Jim Crace, Chief of Police; Joe Wicklund, Communications 
Manager; Paul Senst, Public Works Director; David Bolf, City Engineer; Steve 
Overom, City Attorney 

 
ABSENT:  
 
VISITORS: 5 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Communications 2019-243 through and including 2019-251 were read and placed on file. 
 
Communication 2019-250 from John Mulder, City Administrator to Mayor & City Council regarding 
Essentia Wellness Center Oversight Committee 
 
Communication 2019-251 from John Mulder, City Administrator to Mayor & City Council regarding 
Attorney & Prosecution Services 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
PUBLIC DISCUSSION 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion made by Councilor Geissler, seconded by Councilor Peterson to approve the Consent Agenda 
which includes the following items: 
 
 A. Approve December 16, 2019 City Council Continuation Minutes 
 B. Approve general city warrants from December 16, 2019 through December 31, 2019 in 
      the amount of $962,752.98 

C. Appointment of Official Newspaper – Hermantown Star 
 Appointment of Depositories – Multi Bank Securities; Wells Fargo Securities; RBC Dain 

Rauscher; US Bank; Morgan Stanley; PMA Financial Network, Inc.; National Bank of 
Commerce; 4-M Fund; TD Ameritrade Institutional (Custodian)/Ehlers Investment 
Partners (Advisor) 



City Council Continuation Meeting 
January 6, 2020 
Page | 2 

 Appoint Mayor Boucher as the city’s designated representative to the Hermantown Area 
Chamber of Commerce 

 Appoint Mayor Boucher and Councilor Geissler to serve on the Hermantown Volunteer 
Fire Department Relief Association with Councilor Nelson as alternate 

 Appoint Mayor Boucher as city representative on the Metropolitan Interstate Committee 
with David Bolf, City Engineer on the Technical Advisory Committee with City 
Administrator as alternate 

 Appoint the following for a three-year term: Chad Scott to the Planning & Zoning 
Commission; Cyndy Reno, Joe Peterson, Michael Boese to the Board of Appeals & 
Adjustments; Michael Miller to the Park Board; Jim Samberg to the Utility Commission 

D. Resolution 2020-01 – Appoint Councilor Geissler as Acting Mayor  
 Resolution 2020-02 – Appoint Ex-Officio Members –Councilor Nelson to Board of 

Appeals & Adjustment; Councilor Peterson to Park Board; Councilor Schmidt to 
Planning & Zoning; Councilor Geissler to Utility Commission; Mayor Boucher to Fire 
Department and Councilor Geissler to Airport Zoning Board 

 Resolution 2020-03 – Authorize Mayor Boucher and City Administrator John Mulder to 
sign checks and drafts with Alternates Acting Mayor Geissler and Finance Director 
Kevin Orme 

 Resolution 2020-04 – Appoint Northland Consulting Engineers, LLP as City Engineer 
 Resolution 2020-05 – Appoint Arrowhead Regional Development Commission as City 

Planner 
 
 Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Nelson, Peterson, Schmidt, Mayor Boucher, aye. Motion carried. 
 
MOTIONS 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
2020-01 An Ordinance Amending Title 2 Of The Hermantown City Code By Amending The 
  Official Zoning Map 
 
First Reading 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
2019-208 Resolution Approving Final Planned Unit Development For The Arbours On Maple 

Grove Development 
 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Schmidt to table Resolution 2019-208, 
Resolution Approving Final Planned Unit Development For The Arbours On Maple Grove Development. 
Motion carried. 
 
2019-209 Resolution Approving Preliminary Plat Of The Arbours At Maple Grove Imposing 

Conditions On The Approval Of The Final Plat And Authorizing And Directing The 
Mayor And City Clerk To Execute Such Plat Upon The Satisfaction Of Such Conditions 

 
Motion made by Councilor Schmidt, seconded by Councilor Peterson to table Resolution 2019-209, 
Resolution Approving Preliminary Plat Of The Arbours At Maple Grove Imposing Conditions On The 
Approval Of The Final Plat And Authorizing And Directing The Mayor And City Clerk To Execute Such 
Plat Upon The Satisfaction Of Such Conditions. Motion carried. 
 



City Council Continuation Meeting 
January 6, 2020 
Page | 3 
 
2020-06 Resolution Approving Pay Request Number 18 For The Essentia Wellness Center To 

McGough Construction Co. LLC In The Amount Of $158,378 
 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Geissler to adopt Resolution 2020-06, 
Resolution Approving Pay Request Number 18 For The Essentia Wellness Center To McGough 
Construction Co. LLC In The Amount Of $158,378. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Nelson, Peterson, 
Schmidt, Mayor Boucher. Motion carried. 
 
2020-07 Resolution Approving Wage Rates For Part Time Employees In 2020 
 
Motion made by Councilor Nelson, seconded by Councilor Schmidt to adopt Resolution 2020-07, 
Resolution Approving Wage Rates For Part Time Employees In 2020. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, 
Nelson, Peterson, Schmidt, Mayor Boucher. Motion carried. 
 
2020-08 Resolution Awarding Contract For Utility Tractor To Duluth Lawn & Sport, Inc. In The 

Amount Of $33,499.13 For The Essentia Wellness Center 
 
Motion made by Councilor Geissler, seconded by Councilor Nelson to adopt Resolution 2020-08, 
Resolution Awarding Contract For Utility Tractor To Duluth Lawn & Sport, Inc. In The Amount Of 
$33,409.13 For The Essentia Wellness Center. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Nelson, Peterson, Schmidt, 
Mayor Boucher. Motion carried. 
 
2020-09 Resolution Awarding Contract For A Vacuum/Hydro Excavation Unit Trailer To 

Trenchers Plus, Inc. In The Amount Of $114,189.00 Plus Applicable Taxes And Fees 
 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Schmidt to adopt Resolution 2020-09, 
Resolution Awarding Contract For A Vacuum/Hydro Excavation Unit Trailer To Trenchers Plus, Inc. In 
The Amount Of $114,189.00 Plus Applicable Taxes And Fees. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Nelson, 
Peterson, Schmidt, Mayor Boucher. Motion carried. 
 
2020-10 Resolution Authorizing And Directing The Mayor And City Clerk To Execute And 

Deliver A Cooperative Agreement Between St. Louis County And The City Of 
Hermantown For 2020 Road Striping CP 0000-369583 

 
Motion made by Councilor Peterson, seconded by Councilor Nelson to adopt Resolution 2020-10, 
Resolution Authorizing And Directing The Mayor And City Clerk To Execute And Deliver A 
Cooperative Agreement Between St. Louis County And The City Of Hermantown For 2020 Road 
Striping CP 0000-369583. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Nelson, Peterson, Schmidt, Mayor Boucher. 
Motion carried. 
 
2020-11 Resolution Approving Final Plans And Specifications And Ordering Advertisement For 

Bids For 2020 Road Improvement District No. 531 & No. 532 
 
Motion made by Councilor Geissler, seconded by Councilor Schmidt to adopt Resolution 2020-11, 
Resolution Approving Final Plans And Specifications And Ordering Advertisement For Bids For 2020 
Road Improvement District No. 531 & No. 532. Roll Call: Councilors Geissler, Nelson, Peterson, 
Schmidt, Mayor Boucher. Motion carried. 
 
Motion made by Councilor Geissler, seconded by Councilor Nelson to recess the meeting at 6:43 p.m. 
Motion carried. 



City Council Continuation Meeting 
January 6, 2020 
Page | 4 
 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
         Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
      Clerk 



CITY COUNCIL 
WORK SESSION  

LARGE CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

Tuesday, January 7, 2020 at 4:30 P.M. 
 
ROLL CALL:  Councilors Geissler, Nelson, Peterson, Schmidt, Mayor Boucher 
 
ABSENT:   
 
CITY STAFF: John Mulder, City Administrator; Joe Wicklund, Communications Manager; Eric 

Johnson, Community Development Director, Kevin Orme, Director of Finance & 
Administration 

 
OTHERS: Natalie Hoff; Troy Fath; Jim Crace; Brad Skytta; Marty Olson; Dave Huttel 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
1. Community Recreation Initiative (Fichtner Park, Trails, Ice Arena) 
 
City Administrator John Mulder started the meeting by suggesting the City Council that they needed to 
answer 3 questions as part of this meeting. 
 

1. Should the City proceed with a request to the Legislature for a sales tax increase?  
2. If so, what would be included in that request and at what financing levels? 
3. What edits does the Council wish to see on the draft resolution? 

 
Natalie Hoff of ICS, presented a power point presentation with a revised plan for the hockey arena. The 
revised proposal decreased the size and scope of the project and reduced the overall cost from $17.2 million 
to $13.5 million. The request for sales tax decreased from $13.9 million to $10.8 million.   
 
Following the discussion, the City Council directed staff to proceed with presenting the resolution to the 
City Council at the January 21, 2020 meeting for $19 million dollars.   
 
2. Recess:  The meeting recessed at approximately 6:10 p.m.  
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
        Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
 Clerk 

















City Council Agenda Report  Motion 
January 21, 2020  Agenda Item: 10-A 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Bonnie Engseth, City Clerk 

DATE: January 14, 2020 
 

Meeting Date:  1/21/20 

SUBJECT: New Liquor License – The King 
of Creams 

Agenda Item: 10-A Motion 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve the new Liquor License for The King of Creams 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
An application was received for the restaurant The King of Creams at 4140 Richard Ave, Ste 400. They 
have applied for a Wine/Strong Beer/Sunday Liquor License. All the required paperwork has been 
completed and the fees paid. The license will be good through June 30, 2020. 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
 



City Council Agenda Report  Ordinance 2020-01 
January 21, 2020  Agenda Item: 11-A 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Josh Bergstad, City Planner 

 
DATE: January 14, 2020 Meeting Date:  01/21/20 

 
SUBJECT: Rezoning of Parcels 395-0091-

00140 and 395-0091-00030 
 

Agenda Item: 11-A Ordinance 2020-01 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Second Reading  -  Amend the Hermantown Zoning Map by converting parcels 395-0091-00140 
and 395-0091-00030 of C, Commercial zoning district to C-1, Office/Light Industrial zoning district. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Applicant would like to expand his mini-storage warehouse business to a second location in 
Hermantown.  The location’s zoning, C, Commercial does not currently allow mini-storage warehouses.   
The Applicant and current owner have asked the City to consider rezoning the property to allow for mini-
storage warehouses and a type of use new to Hermantown: garage condos. 

The property is approximately 9.5 acres split across two parcels in the Maple Hill Subdivision, located 
east of Norway Pines Place between the Duluth International Airport and behind a first tier of properties 
along Miller Trunk Highway.  The property immediately to the north is zoned Commercial but is owned 
by the City of Duluth as part of the Airport property. The properties to the west and south are also zoned 
commercial. These lots are privately owned and mostly commercially developed. There is one residence 
in the area but it is not located on an adjoining lot.  

C-1, Office and Light Industrial Zoning Analysis 

The lots’ meet the dimensional standards of the C-1 zone.  C-1 zoning would allow some of the same uses 
that are also allowed in the C zoning district (offices, auto sales, and limited specialty retail) as well as 
industrial uses including warehouses, manufacturing, and mini-storage units. Table 1 shows allowed uses 
in the C-1 zone. 

Permitted Uses.  

Business, sales and professional offices. 
Public buildings and public service facilities. 
Research and development laboratories. 
Gasoline service stations with convenience store. 
Automobile and truck sales, service and repair. 
Equipment sales, service and repair. 
Customary accessory uses and structures. 



City Council Agenda Report  Ordinance 2020-01 
January 21, 2020  Agenda Item: 11-A 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

Special Use Permit. 

Agritainment (A minimum lot size of 10 acres is required.) 
Each proposed use and location shall be depicted on a site plan. 
Contractor’s shop and storage yard. 
Mini storage warehouse. 
Manufacturing, assembly, packaging or fabrication. 
Warehouse, distribution center, fulfillment center. 
Restaurant. 
Adult Use, Accessory. 
Veterinary Clinics. 
Wholesale businesses. 
Building material supplies. 
Lawn and garden material supplies. 
Pawnbrokers.  
Massage Establishment 
Medical Cannabis Dispensary 

  
Airport Overlay C Zone 

The property is located in the Duluth International Airport Overlay Zone C.  Additional regulations on the 
height of structures, lighting, and communication equipment are in effect in Zone C.  Structures in Zone C 
cannot exceed 1580 feet above sea level.  Ground level elevation on the site ranges from 1450 feet to 1490 
feet above sea level.  Development can take place on the property and remain in compliance with the Zone 
C standards. Current City zoning regulations impose a maximum building height of 45 feet mitigating the 
likelihood of approaching the Zone C elevation limit.  

Comprehensive Plan 

The 2001 Comprehensive Plan and the Western Miller Trunk Highway Study (An amendment to the 
Comprehensive Plan) support commercial and light industrial use of this property which is allowed in the 
requested C-1 Zone District. 

The property is located in Comprehensive Plan Concept Area 3 which calls for Development of New 
Compatible Commercial with Adequate Public Utilities and Facilities, Development of Frontage/Backage 
Road System, Preserve Wetlands and Natural Features. 

The Western Miller Trunk Highway Study identified preferred uses for the area as Office, Industry, or 
Multi-residential. Redevelopment criteria included: 

• Access should be off Norway Pines. 
• Possibility to be combined with redevelopment of parcels fronting Miller Trunk Highway. 
• Land use should not require highway visibility. 

 
The land is currently zoned C, Commercial.  The Commercial Zone District is intended to provide 
suitable areas within the community for the grouping and establishment of general retail sales, offices, 
professional buildings and service businesses. It is intended to provide convenient retail facilities for the 
residents of Hermantown and the surrounding area. 



City Council Agenda Report  Ordinance 2020-01 
January 21, 2020  Agenda Item: 11-A 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

The C-1, Office/Light Industrial Zone District is intended for low-density office, light industrial, limited 
commercial services, and public service developments. 

The property does not have frontage or visibility from Miller Trunk Highway so it is not a primary site for 
retail or high traffic service businesses.  The site had been considered for a multi-residential development 
in the past but the noise generated by proximity to the airport runway limits its potential for residential or 
high value office space. 

The Western Miller Trunk Highway Study also analyzed other parcels in the vicinity for future land uses.  
Although the Study did not designate a future zoning district it did discuss potential land uses. Support for 
commercial and light industrial land use of other similar parcels without highway frontage were included.  
The parcel immediately adjacent to the east and south of the subject property 395-0091-00050 was 
included in the analysis.  It is owned separately from the three properties being proposed for rezoning 
here.  Community Development staff has discussed rezoning that property with the owner.  The owner 
has expressed interest in rezoning to C-1 and Community Development staff is working to initiate that 
process in early 2020.  The City has also discussed rezoning the City of Duluth owned property with 
Duluth Planning staff.  The Planning staff was open to the idea. Community Development staff will 
continue these conversations about rezoning to C-1 or P, Public. Community Development Staff is also 
discussing rezoning with the property owner along the Cul-de-sac of Norway Pines Place.  These 
conversations are ongoing.  These considered rezonings address all parcels identified in the Western 
Miller Trunk Highway Plan. 

Development Permitting 

The Applicant has requested the rezoning so he can purchase the property and develop the property for 
mini-storage warehouses, office space for his business (including snow removal and landscaping), and 
“garage condos, uses not the C zoning district.  Mini-storage warehouses are allowed with a Special Use 
Permit in the C-1. The Applicant’s business would be a Contractor’s shop and storage yard and is allowed 
with a Special Use permit in the C-1.  

The proposed “Garage Condos” are not a specifically listed use within the Hermantown Zoning Code.  
However, the anticipated uses within the complex fall under allowed uses in the C-1 Zone District.  There 
are a few C-1 uses that would not be ideal for this location and type of development such as auto-dealer, 
massage establishment, and restaurant.  
 
The Planning Commission discussed how to permit the overall project at its October 15, 2019 meeting 
and indicated enough comfort with the proposed use to proceed with a public hearing and official 
consideration of rezoning. 
 
A decision on rezoning property is independent of any decision on permitting development of a property.  
Rezoning does not imply approval of future development.  Any future development will have to meet all 
City regulations including zoning, stormwater management, wetland processes, and others. 

 

 



City Council Agenda Report  Ordinance 2020-01 
January 21, 2020  Agenda Item: 11-A 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND FINDINGS: 

A review of the existing and potential land uses of the property, and of the surrounding area, support 
rezoning the property to C-1, Office/Light Industrial. Staff and the Planning Commission recommends 
approval of the rezoning based on the following findings: 

1. The proposed rezoning meets the criteria of the Comprehensive Plan and the overall goals and 
policies of the Zoning Ordinance, is suitable for the proposed zoning, and is compatible with 
surrounding zoning and land uses.   

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Location Map 
• Rezoning Ordinance 

 
  



City Council Agenda Report  Ordinance 2020-01 
January 21, 2020  Agenda Item: 11-A 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

Location Map 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Ordinance No. 2020-01 

The City Council of the City of Hermantown does ordain: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 2 OF THE HERMANTOWN CITY CODE 

BY AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 

(PARCELS 395-0091-00140 & 395-0091-00030)  

 Section 1. Amendment to Official Zoning Map. The Official Zoning Map of the City of 
Hermantown is hereby amended so that Lots 3 and 4 and Outlot A, except the Northerly 210 and 54/100 
feet of the Maple Hill Subdivision is zoned C-1, Office and Light Industrial. 

 Section 2.  Purpose and Intent.  The purpose of this amendment is to rezone that Lots 3 and 4 and 
Outlot A, except the Northerly 210 and 54/100 feet of the Maple Hill Subdivision to C-1, Office and Light 
Industrial. 

 Section 3.  Effective Date.  This amendment to Title 2 of the Hermantown Code that amends the 
Official Zoning Map shall be effective after adoption immediately upon (1) the publication of this 
Amendment to Title 2 of the Hermantown City Code once in the legal newspaper of the City of Hermantown 
and (2) the filing of this Amendment to Title 2 with the County Recorder of St. Louis County. 

____________________________________ 

Wayne Boucher, Mayor    

Attest: 

__________________________________ 

Bonnie Engseth, City Clerk 

Adopted:  

Published:________________ 

Effective Date:____________ 



  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                           Agenda Items: 12-A & B  
 

1 
Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Eric Johnson, Community 

Development Director 
 

DATE: January 15, 2020 Meeting Date:  01/21/2020 
 

SUBJECT: Final PUD, Preliminary and 
Final Plat – The Arbours 
Executive Summary 

Agenda Items: 12-A & B Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 

 
This executive summary is designed to provide a clear, concise synopsis of the in-depth staff report 
regarding the final PUD and the preliminary and final plat for the proposed Arbours project. 
 
The approval of this project is supported by City staff and consultants for the following reasons. 
 

• Economics / Job Creation: The property tax revenue from this project will generate more than 
$110,000 annually for the City of Hermantown, more than $100,000 annually for the school 
district, and more than $180,000 for St. Louis County. This uses today’s valuations that indicate 
that more than $8,000,000 will be permanently added to the overall tax base over the next two 
decades. This project will add full and part time, permanent jobs to our area – as well as 
construction jobs added during the building phase of the project. 
 
Housing Opportunity / Density: The City of Hermantown currently does not feature the housing 
stock that this project would provide. The average price of homes developed in Hermantown 
since 2015 has risen to nearly $450,000. The property owner/taxpayer has indicated a starting 
price of $330,000 for single-family homes. This opens Hermantown to residents who cannot 
afford the current housing stock as well as to existing residents who wish to downsize.  Density 
for this project is skewed due to the nature of the 103-unit senior building. The senior building is 
a multi-story structure and has a proposed density of 25.75 units/acre (103 units/4 acres).  Of 
these 103 units, 18 are memory care units, 25 are assisted living units and 60 are independent 
living units.  The proposed facility entails 75.2% of the site density yet generates 45% of the 
traffic for the development which is an average of 2.40 trips/day. 
 
The single family and senior villa multi-family units located over 6 acres have a proposed density 
of 5.7 units/acre (34 units/6 acres).  Per the traffic study, these units account for 55% of the traffic 
for the development which is an average of 8.45 trips/day.  
 

• Safety and Traffic: The proposed development is estimated to generate 543 total trips per day, 
which is 2.7 times less trips than Hermantown’s Deerfield Townhomes – where there have been 
no complaints or issues regarding traffic. St. Louis County required a traffic study and accepted 
the report that the current design meets the traffic safety needs of the intersection and project. The 
senior building owner with their 24/7, 365 staff, will lessen service calls for the HVFD to provide  
assistance at their facility.  It is the goal of the City to encourage the property owner to address 
needs internally rather than call 911.  It is hoped that the learning from this project can be applied 
for other similar projects in the City.   

 
There were also process questions raised that are addressed in the staff report. These are summarized 
below. 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                           Agenda Items: 12-A & B  
 

2 
Working together to serve and build our community. 

 
• Zoning: This project follows the legal and appropriate zoning for the City of Hermantown – most 

notably in that a PUD is an allowed in an R-3 zone district (Section 11 of the zoning ordinance). 
This project will provide public benefits not limited to Park Dedication Fees of more than 
$100,000. This project meets airport zoning requirements and its location adjacent to the 
Governmental Services Building allows for the greater density to be best served with the least 
impact to other residents. 
 

• Planning Process: This project has been discussed and reviewed by City Staff and consultants 
regularly since February of 2019. It has followed the regulations for notices regarding 
neighboring properties and by posted signage by the property owner/taxpayer. Community 
engagement has been received at the appropriate public commission meetings and has informed 
the project accordingly.  
 

• Development Review: The property owner/taxpayer has done their due diligence along with City 
staff, as well as refining and modifying the project to meet regulations and resident feedback. 
This is the type of relationship we want to cultivate with future projects. 

 
This project has the support of not only City staff and consultants, but also aligns with goals St. Louis 
County has regarding Work Force Housing. Additionally, it has been viewed as a positive project by the 
superintendent of the Hermantown Schools and the traffic professionals at St. Louis County. 

 
 
 
 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                        Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                           Agenda Items: 12-A & B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Eric Johnson, Community 

Development Director 
 

DATE: January 15, 2020 Meeting Date:  01/21/2020 
 

SUBJECT: Final PUD, Preliminary and 
Final Plat – The Arbours 

Agenda Items: 12-A & B Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Council to approve a Final Planned Unit Development Plan and a Preliminary and Final Plat for a 137 
unit/lot residential development. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The propoerty owner of 5097 Maple Grove Road is requesting approval of a phased Final Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) Plan and Preliminary and Final Plat, to construct a 103-unit, multi-story senior 
living building, 18 single family style residences and 4 – senior villa fourplexes (16 units total) on 10 
acres in the R-3 Zoning District at 5097 Maple Grove Road.  The proposed development will contain 137 
units total. 
 
SITE INFORMATION:  
Property Size:  10 Acres 
Legal Access:  Maple Grove Road and Lavaque Road 
Wetlands:  Yes – on adjacent 10 acre parcel.  Have been delineated 
Existing Zoning: R -3 Single Family Residential  
Airport Overlay: None 
Shoreland Overlay: No 
Comprehensive Plan: Residential 
 
Background:   
The property owner is proposing The Arbours on Maple Grove which integrates a 103-unit, senior living 
four story building with underground parking, 18 single family residences and 4- senior villa fourplexes 
within a campus like setting.  The site is currently undeveloped with rolling topography and a mixture of 
trees and open grassland area.  There are no wetlands on the main property and the site has access from 
Maple Grove Road to the south and Lavaque Road to the west.  The adjacent 10 acre parcel which will be 
used for site access and future development does have wetlands present.  These wetlands have been 
reviewed and approved delineation wise and will need to have a wetland impact application submitted. 
 
A public hearing for the Preliminary PUD was held on July 16, 2019.  There were approximately 20 
residents present who lived in the vicinity of the project.  There was general concern as to the density of 
the project, concerns about the traffic conditions at the Maple Grove and Lavaque Road intersection and 
the availability of utilities in this area.  The project was recommended unanimously by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
A public hearing for the Final PUD and Preliminary and Final Plat was held on November 19, 2019.  
There were approximately 10 residents present who lived in the vicinity of the project.  There was general 
concern as to the density of the project, concerns about the traffic conditions at the Maple Grove and 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                        Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                           Agenda Items: 12-A & B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

Lavaque Road intersection and the height of the senior building structure.  The project was recommended 
unanimously by the Planning Commission. 
 
There were approximately 70+ people in attendance for the December 16, 2019 City Council meeting.  
The City Council voted to table the project until January 2020. 
   
The single family/senior villa fourplex units are proposed in the first 2020 phase with the 103-unit senior 
building being constructed later in the year. 
 
The proposed single-family homes in Phase 1 will consist of patio style homes of slab on grade as well as 
some units with basements, depending on the topography.  The single-family homes are approximately 
1,768 square feet of living space with an attached 20’x 22’ foot garage.  The homes are proposed to be on 
5,876 square foot minimum lots and have a minimum of a 25-foot front yard setback from the driving 
surface, minimum of 30 feet in the rear yard and 6.5 feet on the side yard with 13 feet between each 
structure. 
 
The proposed senior villa fourplex homes in Phase 1 will consist of patio style homes of slab on grade 
construction.  The units are approximately 1,650 square feet of living space which includes an attached 
20’x 22’ foot garage.  The homes are proposed to be on 15,246 square foot minimum lots and have a 
minimum of a 25-foot front yard setback from the driving surface, 29.5 feet in the rear yard and 20 feet on 
the side yard with 40 feet between each structure.  These senior villas will be rental units, age restricted to 
55+ and have the ability to receive medical assistance from the adjacent senior living facility. 
 
The 103-unit, 4 story senior building consists of independent, assisted living and memory care units and 
is approximately 124,000 square feet total in size.  There will be underground parking with a total of 4 
stories above grade and be 49’ -8” in height to the mid point of the roof pitch as measured from the 
ground elevation.  The building is proposed to be on its own 4-acre lot, have 35 surface parking spaces 
and 49 underground/enclosed spaces.  The building includes landscaped grounds, a sidewalk system and 
outdoor patio space.  The building will consist of 91 one bedroom/studio units and 12 two bedroom units 
and will employ approximately 40 staff members over various shifts. 
 
The property owner will be able to connect into the city sewer and water mains that either access the 
property or are directly adjacent to it.  The developer will need to dedicate a 20’ wide easement along on 
the east side of the property in order to connect to the adjacent trunk sanitary sewer.  The proposed 
waterline running through the site will be looped to provide connection from Maple Grove Road to 
Lavaque Road.  The City will require that these interior utility lines are owned and maintained by the City 
and will have an overlying 30’ wide easement associated with them.    
 
There is a 27,500 square foot common green area proposed on the northeast quadrant of the senior 
building directly behind the senior villa four-plex units.  This green space is accessed by a concrete 
sidewalk and will be open to the residents of this overall development. 
 
PUD Process: 
The City’s zoning regulations governing PUD’s require that each PUD obtain preliminary and final 
approval. The property owner presented the preliminary PUD at the July 16, 2019 Planning Commission 
meeting and it was approved at the August 5, 2019 City Council meeting.  This application mirrors the 
Preliminary PUD submittal with minor changes to the number of single-family units (19 to 18) and the 
increase in parking spaces for the senior building (66 to 84).  
 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                        Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                           Agenda Items: 12-A & B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

As part of the Final PUD approval, the property owner will be required to enter into a development 
contract with the City to govern certain aspects of the site development and operations of the 
development, including payments for utility connections. A PUD order will be issued by the City setting 
project specific development standards. Following completion of the development contract the property 
owner will be granted final Zoning approval and can begin construction, pending approval of the 
associated building permits.  The City anticipates having two Development Agreements for this project, 
one with James Patrick Development LLC for the site development, infrastructure improvements and 
single and multi-family residences and one with Oppidan Investment Company as owners of the senior 
building and associated lot. 
 
Zoning Analysis: 
The PUD process allows the City Council to modify any provisions of the underlying zoning district if the 
PUD is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and provides a public benefit.  Modifying the standards 
through the PUD process is appropriate for the development of this project as it seeks to develop a mixed 
residential use community which could potentially consist of single-family homes, fourplex units and a 4-
story senior building.  The developer is proposing single family housing units starting at $330,000 and 
rental senior villa fourplex units. 
 
Setbacks 
Proposed setbacks vary from the standards of the R-3 Zoning District.  Depicted on the attached exhibits, 
the setbacks reflect a site design that will allow for a creative use of the site subject to existing constraints 
such as site access.   
 
Typical setback standards in the R-3 Zoning District for single family residential homes and proposed 
setbacks are shown in Table 1: 
 

Table 1.  R-3 Residential 
Requirements  

R-3 Requirement Provided – Single Family 
and Fourplex 

Recommended 

Minimum lot area ½ acre 
(2 units/acre) 

5,876 square feet 
15,246 square feet 
minimum 

5,876 square feet 
15,246 square feet 
minimum 

Minimum lot width (at 
setback line) 

100 feet  52 foot minimum 
171 foot minimum 

52 foot minimum 
171 foot 
minimum 

Minimum front yard  50 feet from public ROW 25’ from roadway surface 
– single family 
25’ from roadway - 
fourplex 

25’ from roadway 
surface for all 
structures 

Minimum side yard 10 feet, 25 feet aggregate 6.5 feet minimum, 13 feet 
aggregate – single family 
20’ minimum, 40’ 
aggregate - fourplex 
 

6.5 feet 
minimum, 13 feet 
aggregate 
20’ minimum, 40’ 
aggregate - 
fourplex 

Minimum rear yard 
Main structure 

40 feet Varies – 29.5 feet 
minimum from main 
structure  

29.5’ feet 
minimum 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                        Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                           Agenda Items: 12-A & B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

Minimum rear yard 
Accessory structure 

10 feet N/A N/A 

Minimum side yard 
Accessory structure 

10 feet N/A N/A 

Roadway ROW width 66 feet 24’ driving surface with 
curb and gutter 

24’ driving 
surface with curb 
and gutter 

 
Stormwater 
The property owner is proposing that the stormwater for the project be directed towards two proposed 
storm basins located in the northeast and southeast quadrants of the site. In addition to these two basins, 
the property owner is proposing two BMP’s located on the south side of the senior building to capture 
stormwater from the roof downspouts. The City Engineer is working with the property owner’s engineer 
on the stormwater design plans and calculations. construction and post-construction control of run-off.  
Bio-rolls, silt fencing and other Best Management Practices will be required in order to control runoff 
during construction.  The property owner is responsible to construct these ponds. 
 
The property owner is proposing that the two stormwater ponds in the northeast and southeast quadrants 
of the site be located in outlots.  City staff has discussed with the property owner that these outlots be 
dedicated to the City, which will own and maintain the ponds after they are formally accepted by the City.  
This will be addressed in the Development Agreement with the property owner. 
 
Utilities 
The property owner will connect all lots on the site to City sewer and water systems.  The property owner 
will provide engineered plans for utility connections prior to beginning such work on the site.  Detailed 
plans for new public utilities will be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer prior to issuance of the 
building permits.  No new public utilities will be accepted by the City until reviewed by the City Engineer 
and accepted by resolution of the City Council.  All new public utilities must be placed in a public utility 
easement.   
 
Platting 
The property owner is proposing to subdivide the 10-acre property by way of a plat.  The Platting process 
would subdivide the site into 18 single family lots,4 lots for each senior villa fourplex unit, one lot for the 
senior building and one lot for the Public Way roadway.  Access to the entire road will be guaranteed via 
an easement recorded with the plat which grants access to all of the lots within the development. 
 
The property owner is proposing that the two stormwater ponds in the northeast and southeast quadrants 
of the site be located in outlots.  City staff has discussed that these features/outlots be dedicated to the 
City, which will own and maintain the ponds, with the Developer.  This will be addressed in the 
Development Agreement with the property owner. 
 
Driveway, Parking, and Traffic 
The property owner plans to construct a private, 24-foot-wide asphalt roadway with curb and gutter from 
Maple Grove Road to Lavaque Road on its own lot for the Public Way roadway.  Access to the entire 
road will be guaranteed via an easement recorded with the plat which grants access to all of the lots 
within the development. 
 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                        Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                           Agenda Items: 12-A & B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

City staff has discussed this project with the St. Louis County Traffic Engineer.  Due to the number of 
units being proposed, a traffic impact study was required by St. Louis County in order to better 
understand the amount of traffic associated with this project.  The traffic study was submitted to St. Louis 
County and was subsequently reviewed and approved by the County. 
 
The property owner will be required to perform a new traffic study within 2 years of the final project 
build out.  This report will be forwarded to St. Louis County for their information. 
 
The property owner is proposing an internal sidewalk system associated with the senior building parcel 
and overall development. This sidewalk system will connect to the existing sidewalk along Maple Grove 
Road. 
 
Park Dedication Fees 
The property owner will be required to pay park dedication fees consistent with the requirements of the 
City Zoning Ordinance. Park dedication fees will be paid according to the following schedule.  Payments 
are due at the time of approval of the Final PUD or as agreed to in the development contract. 
 

 
Stormwater Utility Fees 
Upon the completion of each new home, the homeowner will be required to pay the $7.00/month 
stormwater utility fee associated with each parcel for the single family lots with the fourplex and assisted 
living building being calculated as a non-residential (greater than 4 units) use and subject to $7.00/9,100 
square feet of impervious surface. 
 
Ownership Structure: 
The property owner has indicated that the single family units are for sale units.  The senior villas and the 
senior facility are rental based structures with the Oppidan Investment Company being the property owner 
of the senior building and James Patrick Development being the property owner of the senior villas. 
  
Comparisons to other City PUD Developments   
There have been questions related to the size of the lots and houses within the development.  As a 
comparison, the City has looked at the Heartwoods development and the recently approved Engwall’s 
Preliminary PUD project as recent developments which utilizes reduced right of way width and contain 
smaller lots and housing footprints.  A comparison of Heartwoods, Engwall’s and the proposed project is 
as follows: 
 
 
 
 

Development Type Recommended 
Single Family, Two Family, Three Family Residential Parcel/CIC 
Unit $1,100 
Multi-family, 2+ bedroom units $800 
Multi-family, 1 bedroom and studio $400 
Per bedroom fee $150 
Commercial and Industrial $1,100 per acre 

Planned Unit Development 
Proportional to Mix of 
Development 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                        Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                           Agenda Items: 12-A & B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

 
Table 1.  R-3 
Residential 
Requirements  

Heartwoods PUD Engwall’s Development Arbours Development 
Single Family Homes Only 

Minimum lot area 7,500 square feet 4,250 square feet 5,876 square feet 

Common Green 
Element 

N/A 30,500 square feet 27,500 square feet 

House size 1,800 square feet 
(includes attached 
garage) 

1,200 – 2,200 square feet 
(excludes detached garage) 

1,768 square feet 
(excludes attached garage) 

Minimum lot width 
(at setback line) 

Varies – 50 feet 
minimum 

40 foot minimum,  52 foot minimum,  

Minimum front yard  25 feet from ROW Varies – 10 feet minimum from 
common green area, 8 feet from 
public ROW 

25 feet from driving surface 

Minimum side yard 10 feet, 20 minimum 
between buildings 

6 feet minimum, 14 feet 
aggregate 

6.5 feet minimum, 13 feet 
aggregate 

Minimum rear yard 
Main structure 

30 feet 30 feet  30 feet  

Minimum rear yard 
Accessory structure 

10 feet 3 feet N/A 

Minimum side yard 
Accessory structure 

10 feet 5 foot minimum N/A 

Roadway ROW 
width 

50 feet 60 feet  24’ driving lane  

 
Density Comparisons to other City Developments   
There have been questions raised by the public during the Planning Commission meeting and the 
December 16, 2019 City Council meeting as to the density of this project and how it compares to other 
developments in the City.  City staff has looked at other PUD developments throughout the City and is 
utilizing the Deerfield Townhome development as a comparison. 
 
 

Site Data The Arbours at Maple Grove Deerfield Townhomes 

Adjacent Roads and 
Ownership 

Maple Grove Road – County 
Lavaque Road - County 

Maple Grove Road – County 
Stebner Road - City 

Property Size 10 acres  26.2 acres 

Number of units  137 units 
91 – 1 bedroom/studio units 
28 – 2 bedroom units 
18 – 3 bedroom units 

176 units 
132 – 2 bedroom units 
44 – 3 bedroom units 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                        Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                           Agenda Items: 12-A & B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

Site Density 13.7 units/acre 6.7 units/acre 
 

Projected Number of 
Residents 

253 residents 414 residents  

Projected Number of 
Employees on Site (max 
shift) 

20 people 4 people 

Traffic Trip Generation 543 total trips 1487 total trips 

 
The Deerfield Townhome development has a lower density, however there are more people living on the 
property.  There are approximately 414 residents at Deerfield who create 1487 daily traffic trips.  
Deerfield Townhomes with its lower density actually has 1.6 times the resident population and generates 
2.7 times higher daily trips than the Arbours. The City has not received complaints about traffic 
congestion in the vicinity of the Deerfield Townhome project.  
 
Summary 
Staff recommends approval of 137 unit/lot Final PUD, Preliminary and Final Plat, based on the findings 
of this report and the following conditions 
 
1. The proposed PUD meets the intent of the R-3, Residential Zoning District, Chapter 11 – Planned 

Unit Developments, and the overall goals and policies of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 

2. The proposed development meets the Comprehensive Plan for residential development and standards 
of a Planned Unit Development by providing public benefit through enhanced and coordinated 
development design and a greater variety of housing types in the community. 

 
3. The Planned Unit Development is hereby approved is hereby expressly subject to the following 

conditions: 

3.1 That the Project will be constructed as described in the plans accompanying the Application 
and the conditions contained herein. 
 

3.2 The Zoning Administrator of the City of Hermantown shall be notified at least five (5) days 
in advance of the commencement of the work authorized hereunder and shall be notified 
of its completion within five (5) days thereafter. 
 

3.3 No change shall be made in the Project without written permission being previously 
obtained from the City of Hermantown. 
 

3.4 Property Owner shall grant access to the site at all reasonable times during and after 
construction to authorized representatives of the City of Hermantown for inspection of the 
Project to see that the terms of this permit are met. 
 

3.5 Property Owner is initially and continually in compliance with all of the ordinances and 
regulations of the City of Hermantown. 
 

3.6 Trees and brush cannot be burned on the property, but may be chipped and shredded. 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                        Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                           Agenda Items: 12-A & B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

 
3.7 An MPCA Stormwater Permit and erosion control measures must be in place prior to the 

start of operations. 
 

3.8 All utility line easements shall be observed and any encroachment into the utility right-of-
way shall only be permitted with the written approval of the utility. 
 

3.9 The Property Owner shall take measures to control erosion that has the potential to damage 
adjacent land, and control sedimentation that has the potential to leave the site. 

 
4 Dimensional requirements of lots, setbacks, and rights-of-way shall be according to the attached site 

plan and table 1. 

Table 1.  R-3 Residential 
Requirements  

R-3 Requirement Provided – Single Family 
and Fourplex 

Recommended 

Minimum lot area ½ acre 
(2 units/acre) 

5,876 square feet 
15,246 square minimum 

5,876 square feet 
15,246 square 
minimum 

Minimum lot width (at 
setback line) 

100 feet  52 foot minimum 
161 foot minimum 

52 foot minimum 
161 foot 
minimum 

Minimum front yard  50 feet from public ROW 25’ from roadway surface 
– single family 
25’ from roadway - 
fourplex 

25’ from roadway 
surface for all 
structures 

Minimum side yard 10 feet, 25 feet aggregate 6.5 feet minimum, 13 feet 
aggregate – single family 
20’ minimum, 40’ 
aggregate - fourplex 

6.5 feet 
minimum, 13 feet 
aggregate 
20’ minimum, 40’ 
aggregate - 
fourplex 

Minimum rear yard 
Main structure 

40 feet Varies – 29.5 feet 
minimum from main 
structure  

29.5’ feet 
minimum 

Minimum rear yard 
Accessory structure 

10 feet N/A N/A 

Minimum side yard 
Accessory structure 

10 feet N/A N/A 

Roadway ROW width 66 feet 24’ driving surface with 
curb and gutter 

24’ driving 
surface with curb 
and gutter 

 

5 The Property Owner will have one year from the date of the Final PUD approval to enter into a 
Development Agreement with the City. 
 



City Council Agenda Report                                                                        Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                           Agenda Items: 12-A & B 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

6 Property Owner to submit preliminary and final construction documents (water, storm sewer, sanitary 
sewer, roadway, etc.) according to City standards and coordinated with the City Engineer as part of 
the Final PUD process. 

 
7 Installation of water and sanitary sewer shall require the Property Owner to enter into an agreement 

with the City governing the terms of such work.  All utility plans shall be approved by the City 
Engineer.  The City/Developer agreement shall specify the amount of a financial guarantee to be held 
by the City from the time of commencement of work until such a time as the City is prepared to 
accept as complete the new public infrastructure.  All drainage and utility easements shall have 
associated easements.  The Property Owner shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City 
for all public utilities. 

 
8 The Property Owner shall pay park dedication fees according to the following schedule.  Payments 

are due at the time of approval of the Final PUD or as agreed to in the development contract. 

 
9 The property Owner shall sign a consent form assenting to all conditions of this approval.  

 
10 The Property Owner shall pay an administrative fine of $750 per violation of any condition of this 

approval.   
 

11 The approval made by this resolution extends only to the Project as defined in this resolution.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Location Map 
• Graphic Site Plan 
• Overall Preliminary PUD Layout 
• Preliminary Plat 
• Senior Facility Building Elevation 
• Single Family Building Elevation 
• Single Family Floor Plan 
• Fourplex Building Elevation 

Development Type Recommended 
Single Family, Two Family, Three Family Residential Parcel/CIC 
Unit $1,100 
Multi-family, 2+ bedroom units $800 
Multi-family, 1 bedroom and studio $400 
Per bedroom fee $150 
Commercial and Industrial $1,100 per acre 

Planned Unit Development 
Proportional to Mix of 
Development 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                            Agenda Items: 12-A & B  
 

1 
Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  Eric Johnson, Community 

Development Director 
 

DATE: January 15, 2020 Meeting Date:  01/21/2020 
 

SUBJECT: Final PUD, Preliminary and 
Final Plat – The Arbours 
Public Comment Responses 

Agenda Items: 12-A & B Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 

 
The information listed below is a compilation of the public comments heard at the December 16, 2019 City 
Council meeting for The Arbours at Maple Grove and staff responses to these comments.  
 
These comments have been grouped into six categories: Planning Process, Zoning, Traffic/Safety Issues, 
Density, Economics/Job Creation and Development Review and include staff responses to the comments. 
 
An executive summary of this Report will be provided to you.  
 
Planning Process 
The City ordinance outlines the process for Planned Unit Developments and the required steps for its review 
and approval.  The City and Property Owner/Taxpayer have followed the process mandated by the City 
Code.   
 
This project has been reviewed and discussed by City Staff and consultants regularly (at every Four Square 
Meeting) since February of 2019. City Staff and consultants believe that this project is a great project, one 
that other communities would vigorously pursue with public/economic development assistance like TIF 
and fits needs that the City Staff has been trying to fill for several years with projects like the Engwalls 
PUD, the twin homes development on Haines Road and Morris Thomas, Stebner Farms, etc.  
 
Public Comments: 
1. No notifications (1) 
2. Not posted in the Hermantown Star (1) 
3. Planning and Zoning did not respond to issues/comments from public (2) 
4. Property Owner/Taxpayer is controlling the process (3) 
 
Staff Responses: 
 
1. Public Comment No. 1 and 2: Notices of Planning and Zoning public hearing were mailed to property 

owners 1000’ from property boundary.  Mailed notices were sent out to 27 property owners on July 3, 
2019 for the Preliminary PUD and on October 3, 2019 for the Final PUD, Preliminary and Final Plat.  
The Planning and Zoning meetings with this application were posted in the Hermantown Star in the 
July 4, 2019 issue and the November 7, 2019 issue.  Property Owner/Taxpayer posted a notice sign on 
the property 15 days prior to the meetings in July and November.  

 
2. Public Comment No. 3: The Planning and Zoning Commission is an advisory board.  The citizen 

issues were made part of the public record and comments were forwarded to the City Council. The 
Planning and Zoning Commission receives input on a project, but does not engage in debate or 
discussion with citizens regarding projects.  



City Council Agenda Report  Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                            Agenda Items: 12-A & B  
 

2 
Working together to serve and build our community. 

 
3. Public Comment No. 4: Property Owner/Taxpayer and City Staff have been discussing this project 

since February 2019.  The City has followed the required procedures associated with applications for 
development.  During this process, Property Owner/Taxpayer has made modifications to the concept 
and preliminary plans based on City Staff comments.  Property Owner/Taxpayer has followed the City 
review and approval process in regards to submissions to City Staff, applications to Planning and 
Zoning and City Council. The procedures and process set forth in Chapter 11 of the City Code are being 
followed, namely as follows: 

 
3.1. Pre-Application Conference 

 
3.1.1. The purpose of the pre-application conference is to allow City Staff to review and provide 

comments on the suitability of the development concept as a PUD, as well as to provide 
guidance to application on the procedures and standards for PUD approval. 
 

3.2. Preliminary PUD Plan 
 

3.2.1. Upon receipt of a complete application for a preliminary PUD, the application shall be 
reviewed by City Staff and a report concerning the application shall be submitted to the 
planning commission for its consideration. 
 

3.2.2. Required information includes Property Owner/Taxpayer information, a site/development 
plan, Professional Engineer prepared utility plan, proposed type of development, density, 
staging/phasing plan, rights of ways or easements.  Staff may require a traffic study and, in 
this case, required that one be prepared. 

 
3.3. Final PUD Plan 

 
3.3.1. Final site plan that is drawn to scale showing the location of all structures including their 

placement, size and type as well as streets, parking areas and stall arrangement, pedestrian 
facilities, parking calculations, designed outdoor recreation areas, and common areas.  
 

3.3.2. A landscape plan is required that shows the location, size and species of plant materials and 
all nonvegetative landscape features. 

 
3.3.3. Building plans at a level of detail sufficient to allow parking calculations to be made and 

building elevation drawings showing architectural details and proposed building materials are 
required.  

 
3.3.4. Any other information which the City, in its sole discretion, may require to fully present the 

intention and character of the PUD must be provided. In this case, the City required 
perspective drawings of the single family home neighborhood, a view of the senior building 
from the interior of the site as well as from the intersection of Maple Grove and Lavaque 
Roads as well as an elevational drawing showing the height relationship from Maple Grove 
and Lavaque Roads to the senior building. 

 
3.4. Development Agreement 

 
3.4.1. The City requires that the owner and Property Owner/Taxpayer of a proposed PUD execute 

a Development Agreement which will include all requirements of the final PUD plan, 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                            Agenda Items: 12-A & B  
 

3 
Working together to serve and build our community. 

agreements on utilities, roads, and other infrastructure as a condition to approval of the final 
PUD.  
 

3.4.2. The Development Agreement will require Property Owner/Taxpayers to provide an 
irrevocable letter of credit or performance bond in favor of the City to make sure that the 
obligations are satisfied. 

 
3.5. City Staff discussed this process with Property Owner/Taxpayer when the project was first 

submitted to the City.  Due to the scale of the project, staff directed Property Owner/Taxpayer to 
separate the process into individual preliminary and final PUD applications.  By doing this the 
project had two public hearings at the Planning and Zoning level and a minimum of two City 
Council meetings.  If the project had remained as a combined preliminary and final plat there 
would only be one public hearing at Planning and Zoning and one City Council meeting. 

 
Zoning 
The property is zoned R-3, Residential.  Property Owner/Taxpayer has applied for a Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) for the property.  A PUD IS A PERMITTED USE IN AN R-3 ZONE DISTRICT. 
Section 11 of the zoning ordinance explains that: ‘A PUD is intended to encourage a more efficient and 
creative use of land and development, more efficient and effective use of streets, utilities and public 
services; protection of natural resources; and more efficient and effective provision of recreational, public 
and open space than can be achieved through conventional development procedures. 
 
This project is in close proximity to the City’s administrative services complex and will be a natural and 
complementary extension of a higher density institutional service use of the property near the intersection 
of Maple Grove Road and Lavaque Road. 
 
Public Comments: 
1. Property values will decrease (1) 
2. Project is not in the spirit of R-3 zoning (2) 
3. Public benefits disputed (3) 
4. Nobody in favor of the project (4) 
5. 2 story structure is more appropriate (5) 
6. Senior building should be put at the rear of the property (6) 
7. School class size issues (7) 
8. Distance to school (8) 
9. Committee should design the project (9) 

 
Staff Responses: 
 
1. Public Comment No. 1: Streets.mn reviewed 7 different housing studies from 1984-2010 that analyzed 

single family housing values in relation to their close proximity to multi-family housing developments.  
Five of the seven studies found that dense development, including workforce and market-rate housing, 
had negligible or positive effects on home values. One study found negative impact (Section 8 housing), 
and one of the studies found mixed impacts depending on the existing values of the neighborhood that 
public housing was added to. The Center for Housing Policy presented a policy brief in February 2009 
which analyzed twelve different housing studies from 1993 – 2007 and stated in their summary: the 
vast majority of studies have found that workforce housing does not depress neighboring property 
values, and may even raise them in some cases. Overall, the research suggests that neighbors should 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                            Agenda Items: 12-A & B  
 

4 
Working together to serve and build our community. 

have little to fear from the type of attractive and modestly sized developments that constitute the bulk 
of newly produced workforce housing today.  

 
2. Public Comment No. 2: The individual homes proposed in this project will be priced over $330,000.00 

and will be marketed to be owned-occupied. City Staff has been working for several years to find a 
housing type that a worker at Cirrus, AAR, the City of Hermantown or the Hermantown School District 
can afford to buy within the City. City Staff believes that this project will provide housing that will 
allow workers in Hermantown to own a home in Hermantown. Staff has also observed first hand where 
smaller lot sizes were used to reduce lot and infrastructure costs in order to provide single family 
housing units of 1,800 square feet for $300,000.  These homes were part of a larger neighborhood 
development with existing lots in excess of ½ acre in size.   A PUD IS AN ALLOWED USE IN AN 
R-3 ZONE DISTRICT.  

 
3. Public Comment No. 3: Per Section 1105 of the Planned Unit Development section of the Zoning 

Ordinance requires that a PUD must provide public benefits to the surrounding neighborhood and to 
the city above and beyond what can be reasonably achieved by application of the zoning provisions 
applicable to the underlying zoning district. The nature and scale of public benefit shall be determined 
by the City and include, but not be limited to:  

 
3.1. Preservation and enhancement of natural systems and resources, topography, vegetation, and other 

natural features. – This project allows for development of a property which has minimal 
impediments (good access, no wetlands, minimal adjacent properties).  By providing density on 
this 10 acre site, housing needs are accomplished within a smaller development footprint than 
otherwise would be needed. 
 

3.2. Provision of a variety of housing and community types. – The project provides a mix of single 
family, workforce housing and senior housing. 

 
3.3. Provision of recreational amenities including trails and parks. – The project proposes shared green 

space in development.  In addition, this development is adjacent to the proposed Hermantown 
Community Connector Trail, a 2.15 mile trail from the Government Services Complex (City Hall) 
to the Essentia Wellness Center/Hermantown School Campus.  This proposed trail would connect 
to the existing sidewalk located at the NW intersection of Maple Grove and Lavaque Road.   
 

3.4. Provisions of pedestrian and non-motorized travel facilities. - Internal sidewalk system which 
connects to the public right of way and sidewalk described above. 

 
3.5. Use of design, landscape, or architectural features to create pleasing environment or other special 

development features.  This is accomplished by requiring the use of approved building materials 
and shared green space. 

 
3.6. Enhanced efficiency in the provision of utility services, public infrastructure, or public services. - 

Utilizing density and smaller lot sizes allows the utilities and roadways to better serve more 
citizens than could be done under the standard R-3 zoning. 

 
4. Public Comment No. 4: The Duluth Economic Development Authority and the Duluth Housing and 

Redevelopment Authority contracted with Maxfield Research, Inc. in April 2014 to provide a study for 
Workforce Housing needs in Duluth and surrounding area.  The study identified Hermantown, Duluth, 
Proctor, Rice Lake, Canosia and Lakewood Township in the Duluth Primary Market Area. 
 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                            Agenda Items: 12-A & B  
 

5 
Working together to serve and build our community. 

Based on the analysis completed, Maxfield Research Inc. determined that the Primary Market Area 
over the next six years (2014-2020) could support a total of 4,470 units incorporating a variety of price 
points, product types and including owned and rental housing.  Demand by segment as follows: 
 
For-sale new construction – Single-Family 150 homes per year  
Market rate rental (80% of Area Median Income or higher) – 180 units per year  
Workforce rentals (50% to 80% of Area Median Income or higher) – 200 units per year  
Deep subsidy rentals (less than 50% of Area Median Income) – 212 units per year 
 
In addition to the Maxfield Research study, Property Owner/Taxpayer has conducted a market study 
for Senior Housing Demand in Hermantown.   
 
The PMA (Primary Market Area) – Hermantown, Duluth, Proctor, Rice Lake, Canosia Township 
Lakewood Township and Midway Township has a sizeable 75+ senior population that is projected to 
grow over the next five years (+15.7%), reversing declines experienced last decade. This growth should 
lead to demand for additional senior housing units in Hermantown.  
 
After accounting for other pending developments that may come on-line, total unmet demand in the 
PMA for the three levels of housing with services is projected for 532 market rate units in 2023. With 
a central location in eastern Hermantown, it is estimated that the project can capture one-third of the 
unmet PMA demand. This equates to 119 independent units, 31 assisted living units, and 25 memory 
care units, for a total of 176 units on the site in 2023. There is also calculated demand for 55 units of 
senior cooperative housing on the site. 
 

5. Public Comment No. 5: City Code allows a PUD to have standards that meet the City’s goals for each 
proposed development.  These standards include building height, density, roadway widths and setbacks.  
 

6. Public Comment No. 6: Property Owner/Taxpayer originally proposed the senior building be located 
in the Northeast portion of the property.  City Staff requested that the building be located in the SW 
portion of the site where it would abut 2 county roadways vs. two residential properties/structures north 
of the property.  In addition, as Property Owner/Taxpayer progressed with engineering drawings it was 
determined that the site topography presented issues to locating the senior building in the Northeast 
portion of the site. 

 
7. Public Comment No. 7: The PUD has been shared with the Hermantown School Superintendent who 

did not express concerns with the project. 
 

8. Public Comment No. 8: This development is approximately 2.25 miles from the school campus.  
Traffic from this site will not affect traffic around the school. The traffic study confirmed this 
conclusion.  

 
9. Public Comment No. 9: The Planning and Zoning public hearings serve as the means of collecting 

citizen input on a development project. 
 

Traffic/Safety Issues 
Background: The proposed project was sent to St. Louis County for their review in July 2019 because the 
project was bounded by two (2) County roads.  At the request of Vic Lund, the County Traffic Engineer, a 
trip generation study for the project was prepared.  Property Owner/Taxpayer engaged Vernon Swing a 
Professional Engineer specializing in traffic engineering to conduct the study. The study took place in July 
and August 2019. The study was forwarded to Vic Lund, who concurred with the report and stated that a 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                            Agenda Items: 12-A & B  
 

6 
Working together to serve and build our community. 

permit for full driveway access on Maple Grove Road and Lavaque Road would be approved upon receiving 
an application. The study is available for inspection at City Hall.  
 
As part of the Maple Grove Road project in 2019, St. Louis County installed a two-way-left-turn lane on 
Maple Grove Road, with dedicated left-turn lanes at the intersection of Maple Grove Road and Lavaque 
Road to accommodate this project. 
 
Property Owner/Taxpayer will be required under the Development Agreement to perform an additional 
traffic study two (2) yeas after the completion of the project to reassess traffic conditions at the Maple 
Grove/Lavaque intersection. 
 
Public Comments: 
1. Safety Concerns (1) 
2. No sidewalk on Lavaque Road (2) 
3. No stoplight at intersection (3) 
4. Emergency calls to facility (4) 
5. Ladder height for fire truck (5) 
6. Building height issues in regards to airport zoning (6) 
 
Staff Responses: 
 
1. Public Comment No. 1: Per conversations with Property Owner/Taxpayer, Ebenezer, which will 

operate the senior facility for Oppidan, has protocols for all emergency services and employ well trained 
staff that is equipped to handle these types of instances. Safety and security is the number one priority 
in all their senior living facilities. This project has been discussed with Vic Lund, Traffic Engineer for 
St. Louis County.  Mr. Lund has indicated that this project does not create the need for additional traffic 
control measures.  
 

2. Public Comment No. 2: This development is adjacent to the proposed Hermantown Community 
Connector Trail, a 2.15 mile trail from the Government Services Complex (City Hall) to the Essentia 
Wellness Center/Hermantown School Campus.  This proposed trail would connect to the existing 
sidewalk located at the NW intersection of Maple Grove and Lavaque Road and extend north 
approximately ½ mile to the sanitary sewer easement corridor.  From this point the trail would head 
northwest towards the Arrowhead Road/Ugstad Road intersection. 
 

3. Public Comment No. 3: Vic Lund, Traffic Engineer with St. Louis County advised City Staff that the 
County performed an intersection control evaluation (ICE) study of Maple Grove Road and Lavaque 
Road in 2013. At that time, the traffic volumes did not warrant a traffic signal in accordance with the 
Minnesota Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).   
 
The proposed project was sent to St. Louis County for their review in July 2019.  Vic Lund, requested 
that a trip generation study be conducted for the project.  The Property Owner/Taxpayer engaged 
Vernon Swing a Professional Engineer specializing in traffic engineering to conduct the study which 
took place in July and August 2019. The  study was forwarded to Vic Lund, who concurred with the 
report and stated that a permit for full driveway access on Maple Grove Road and Lavaque Road would 
be approved upon receiving an application. 
 
Vic Lund is of the opinion that the intersection of Maple Grove Road and Lavaque Road does not 
currently warrant a traffic signal.  However, this intersection may warrant something in the future such 
as a traffic signal or roundabout. In order to provide a definitive analysis, we would have to recount the 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                            Agenda Items: 12-A & B  
 

7 
Working together to serve and build our community. 

intersection and perform a signal warrant analysis.  The Property Owner/Taxpayer will be required to 
perform a Traffic Study two (2) years after the completion of the project in order to assess the need for 
intersection improvements.  
  
Lastly, the intersection of Maple Grove Road and Lavaque Road is an entirely County-owned 
intersection and therefore St. Louis County is responsible to ensure this intersection is performing 
safely and efficiently while also looking out for future needs. St. Louis County has already reviewed 
the trip generation study of this proposed development and did not have any concerns about the 
additional traffic it may add and has indicated that it will issue access permits when requested. 

 
4. Public Comment No. 4: Staff has discussed an excessive service fee with the senior building owner. 

This issue will be addressed in the Development Agreement for the senior citizen part of the project.  
 
From staff research, there are numerous communities across the U.S. which utilize some form or 
reimbursement for emergency service calls.  Reimbursements methods range from directly billing the 
party who required the service, the billing of the facility who requested the service ($300-$1500/call) 
to communities which offer a yearly license fee to individuals to cover the cost of emergency service 
calls.    
 
Ebeneezer staffs ‘awake’ caregivers at their facilities 24/7, 365 days a year to help care for residents, 
and address emergencies.   In addition to these services the project is closely located to the Hermantown 
Volunteer Fire Department with the entrance to the project site being approximately 1500 feet from the 
Maple Grove driveway access of the HVFD. 
 

5. Public Comment No. 5: Staff has discussed this project with Mike Marshall, Fire Chief of the 
Hermantown Volunteer Fire Department.  Chief Marshall advised City Staff that the HVFD has a ladder 
truck with a 75’ ladder.  The ability to maximize the ladder reach is dependent upon how close the truck 
can get to the structure as well as the angle of attack in order to fight the fire.  The proposed development 
has paved surfaces ranging from 18’ to 40’ along the front of the building which could be used for fire 
access.  In addition, the senior building is a fully sprinkled building per MN State Building Codes.  

 
6. Public Comment No. 6: Height issues for airport – the property is within the Airport Safety Zone C, 

which only dictates height.  The C zone restricts building height perimeter to a 1580 elevation.  The 
proposed senior building is at approximately 1399 FFE; a 50’ tall structure puts the elevation at 1449 
well below the airport zoning height restrictions. 

 
Density/Housing Costs 
City Staff along with St. Louis County have been discussing the need for workforce housing in the City 
and what methods were available to achieve it for several years.  Development costs are traditionally higher 
in this region then other urban centers and with the lack of volume builders in the area constructing multiple 
housing units at a time, the average construction cost and unit sales price have been high. It is not 
uncommon for new single family homes on a one-half acre lot with water and sewer service to cost over 
$500,000.00 for a 2,000 square foot home.  
 
Other than providing public subsidies, one method to promote workforce housing is the allowance of 
density.  The density allows for the maximization of public infrastructure (water, sanitary and roads) and 
can contribute to lower construction and housing costs.   
 
Public Comments: 
1. The project is too dense (1) 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                            Agenda Items: 12-A & B  
 

8 
Working together to serve and build our community. 

 
Staff Responses Density: 
 
1. Public Comment No. 1: The proposed project is for 137 units comprised of 103 senior living units, 18 

single-family homes and 4 -fourplex senior villas (16 units total).  The senior building is on a 4-acre lot 
and the single and senior villas units are on the remaining six acres in the plat. 

 
Public comments expressed concerns with the overall 13.7 units/acre associated with the development.  
This number can be misleading as it is mostly driven by the 103 unit senior building.  The senior 
building is a multi-story structure and has a proposed density of 25.75 units/acre (103 units/4 acres).  
Of these 103 units, 18 are memory care units, 25 are assisted living units and 60 are independent living 
units.  The proposed facility entails 75.2% of the site density yet generates 45% of the traffic for the 
development with an average of 2.40 trips/day. 
 
The single family and senior villas are located on six acres and have a proposed density of 5.7 units/acre 
(34 units/6 acres).  Pursuant to the traffic study, these units account for 55% of the traffic for the 
development which is an average of 8.45 trips/day.  
 
The total proposed Arbours development is anticipated to have 253 residents with up to 20 staff at a 
time associated with the senior building facility. 
 
Comparing this project to the Deerfield Townhomes development with its 176 units and 6.7 units/acre 
density, the Deerfield development has a lower density, however there are more people living on the 
property.  There are approximately 414 residents at Deerfield who create 1487 daily traffic trips.  
Deerfield Townhomes with its lower density actually has 1.6 times the resident population and 
generates 2.7 times higher daily trips than the Arbours. The City has not received complaints about 
traffic congestion in the vicinity of the Deerfield Townhome project.  

 
Staff Responses Housing Costs: 

 
City staff has reviewed new house start data and home sales in Hermantown from 2015 to the present.  
Staff reviewed single family development projects with typical ½ acre lot sizes with homes constructed 
within the last 10 years.  This data was obtained through St. Louis County Market Sales and Value data. 
The residential developments reviewed with the average sales/start prices are as follows: 
Jackson Estates 1st-3rd Additions: $488,500 
Jackson Estates 4th Addition (New Construction): $503,000 
Sugar Maple Estates: $474,000 
Timber Trails: $451,000 
Heartwoods (Mix of twinhomes and single family on lots less than ½ acre): $309,500 
Greystone: $516,400 
Oak Ridge: $435,250 
Patriot Drive (twinhomes): $378,750 
 
Based on sales information, the average price of homes in these developments is $444,547.  New home 
construction costs for single-family homes on ½ acre lots are rarely under $500,000.00 in Hermantown.  
 
Property Owner/Taxpayer has indicated that the starting price for the single-family homes will be 
$330,000.00. 

 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                            Agenda Items: 12-A & B  
 

9 
Working together to serve and build our community. 

Economics/Job Creation 
The proposed project would be constructed solely with private funds, as Property Owner/Taxpayer has not 
requested any City assistance for the project.  Previously, the City engaged a contractor to install water 
service to this property in association with the Maple Grove roadway improvement project in mid-2019.  
The cost of this service extension to the south property line of the site was $66,190.00.   As part of the 
Development Agreement, Property Owner/Taxpayer will be responsible to repay the City this amount either 
at time of platting or as an assessment to the property. 
 
Property tax will be generated on the 18 single family homes, 16 senior villas and the 103 senior housing 
units. Per the County Assessor, here are approximate valuations for the various housing structures: 
 
1. Single family residential with slab construction: $330,000 
2. Single family residential with basement: $350,000 
3. Senior Villa (fourplex) with slab construction: $315,000 
4. 103 unit senior housing building: $12,500,000 

 
Per the County Auditor, here are approximate property taxes for the various housing structures per year: 
 
1. Single family residential with slab construction:  $5,110 x 9 homes = $45,990 
2. Single family residential with basement: $5,400 x 9 homes = $48,600 
3. Senior Villa (fourplex) with slab construction: $4,880 x 16 homes = $78,080 
4. 103 unit senior housing building: $243,414 

 
Property taxes are primarily broken into three components: County, City and School.  The proposed 
development would generate the following: 
 
1. County taxes: $188,263/year 
2. City taxes: $116,490/year 
3. School taxes: $108,083year 
 
This tax revenue is equivalent to a 1.5% reduction in the tax burden for the taxpayers in the City. In addition 
to property taxes this project will also generate approximately $108,750.00 in park dedication fees. 
 
In addition to the property taxes generated by this development, the senior building facility will create the 
equivalent of approximately 40 jobs of both full-time and part time positions. These positions will be at 
various wage rates and skill levels including skilled nursing, housekeeping, cooks and dining assistants and 
professional management.   
 
The construction of the senior housing building is expected to be over an 18 month period.  The single 
family and fourplex units will also commence construction in 2020 with the build-out being market 
dependent and potentially over a three year period.  These construction services will provide numerous 
construction jobs during this period. 
 
Development Review 
Property Owner/Taxpayer first approached the City in February 2019 with the proposed project.  Property 
Owner/Taxpayer has worked through different concept renditions of the plan based upon their due diligence 
and City Staff comments. 
 
Property Owner/Taxpayer provided concept site and engineering drawings in May 2019 which were 
followed with preliminary engineering drawings and stormwater calculations in June 2019 as part of the 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                            Agenda Items: 12-A & B  
 

10 
Working together to serve and build our community. 

Planning and Zoning meeting Preliminary PUD review.  These plans were further modified and refined 
following City Staff and City Engineer review during September and October as part of the Final PUD and 
Plat review. 
 
Public Comments: 
1. Not enough information (1) 
2. Lack of details (1) 
3. Small driveways (2) 
4. Needs a large pond (3) 
5. Stormwater calculations (3) 
6. Required variances/requirements being met (4) 
7. Need for a Phase 1 Environmental study (5) 
8. Loss of wooded area (6) 
9. Deer issues (6) 
10. Buffer area (7) 
11. Civil Engineer review (8) 
12. Trail (9) 
13. Snow issues (10) 
 
Staff Responses: 
 
1. Public Comment No. 1 and 2: Property Owner/Taxpayer has submitted preliminary engineering plans 

for the development as well as storm water calculations.  Property Owner/Taxpayer will be required to 
submit final engineering documents and storm water calculations prior to issuance of any site 
development work.  These documents have been reviewed by City Staff and the City Engineer.  All 
stormwater work will be required to be performed pursuant to the Development Agreement and covered 
by a letter of credit or performance bond.  

 
2. Public Comment No. 3: The proposed driveways are a minimum of 25’ in length.  This length is 

similar to other permitted PUD’s (Patriot Drive Townhomes and Heartwoods). 
 
3. Public Comment No. 4 and 5: Stormwater calculations have been provided as part of preliminary 

plans and have been reviewed and approved by the City Engineer in regards to stormwater pond 
requirements. See Item No. 1 above regarding Development Agreement requirements.  

 
4. Public Comment No. 6: THERE ARE NO VARIANCES REQUIRED FOR THIS PROPOSED 

DEVELOPMENT.  A PUD IS A PERMITTED USE IN AN R-3 ZONE DISTRICT.  
 
5. Property Owner/Taxpayer performed whatever due diligence investigations it deemed necessary before 

purchasing the property.  To date Property Owner/Taxpayer has conducted 17 soil borings, wetland 
assessment and delineations and other due diligence investigations.  No issues have been raised. 

 
6. Public Comment No. 8 and 9: Undeveloped or underdeveloped property surrounds this proposed 

development, which can continue to serve as wildlife habitat. The Development Agreement will require 
appropriate landscaping of the project and as much tree preservation as is possible. Deer are an issue 
everywhere in the City.  

 
7. Public Comment No. 10: Landscaping will be required as part of the Development Agreement. A large 

existing stand of trees buffers the properties to the North of the project.  The property abuts the sanitary 
sewer easement on the east side of the property, which limits development within this 100’ corridor. 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolutions 2019-208 & 209 
January 21, 2020                                                                                            Agenda Items: 12-A & B  
 

11 
Working together to serve and build our community. 

This is a corner lot abutting two County roadways.  The two residential properties on the south side of 
Maple Grove Road are a minimum of 325’ from the senior building structure.  

 
8. Public Comment No. 11: The City Engineer will review and approve preliminary and final 

construction drawings.  No development permits are issued until the City Engineer approves these 
documents. 

 
9. Public Comment No. 12: The City is pursuing a grant with the MNDOT for the construction of a 2.15 

mile trail from the Government Services Complex (City Hall) to the Essentia Wellness 
Center/Hermantown School Campus.  This proposed trail would connect to the existing sidewalk 
located at the NW intersection of Maple Grove and Lavaque Road.  The City is requesting $600,000 
from the MN Department of Transportation for the project with the City’s required match being 
$120,000.  The Park Dedication fees anticipated to be generated by this proposed project are 
approximately $108,750 which can be used towards the City’s required match. 

 
10. Public Comment No. 13: This proposed project is a privately maintained development.  The 

Development Agreement will require that Property Owner/Taxpayer be responsible for snow removal 
and storage. Property Owner/Taxpayer will be responsible for any trucking or removal of snow from 
the project at Property Owner/Taxpayer’s cost. 

 





















  
 
 

1 

Resolution No. 2019-208 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING FINAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR THE 
ARBOURS AT MAPLE GROVE DEVELOPMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, JP Holding Co LLC (“Property Owner”) submitted an application (“Application”) for 
a Final Planned Unit Development (“Final PUD”) to allow for construction of 137 new residential units on 
a site located at 5097 Maple Grove Road in the City of Hermantown; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Hermantown Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
Preliminary Planned Unit Development (“Preliminary PUD”) on July 6, 2019 following notice as required 
by the City’s Zoning Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, following the public hearing on the Preliminary PUD, the Hermantown Planning and 

Zoning Commission recommended by a unanimous vote that the City Council approve the Preliminary 
PUD at its meeting on August 5, 2019; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council duly considered the Preliminary PUD at its meeting on August 5, 

2019 and by a unanimous vote approved the Preliminary PUD; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hermantown Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the Final 

PUD at its meeting on November 19, 2019 and recommended that the City Council approve the Final PUD 
by a unanimous vote at such meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council considered the Final PUD at its meeting on December 16, 2019 and 

received public comments and questions regarding the Final PUD; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council tabled consideration of the Final PUD until January 6, 2020 to allow 

City staff time to research and review comments and questions made at the December 16, 2019 City Council 
Meeting; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council tabled consideration of the Final PUD to January 21, 2020 at its 

meeting on January 6, 2020 to allow City staff additional time to research and review comments made at 
the December 16, 2019 City Council meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council provided opportunity for public comments regarding the Final PUD 

at its meeting on January 21, 2020; and  
 
 WHEREAS, after due consideration of the entire City file, the testimony at the public hearings 
conducted by the Hermantown Planning and Zoning Commission, the public comments at the City Council 
meetings on December 16, 2019 and January 21, 2020 and all other relevant matters the City Council hereby 
makes the following findings of fact related to the Final PUD. 
 

A. FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. Property Owner made application for the Final PUD which is to be located within the City 
of Hermantown. 

 
2. Property Owner has advised the City that the Final PUD is located on the Land which is 

owned by Property Owner. 



  
 
 

2 

 
3. The Final PUD has been planned and will be developed under one Final PUD approval. 
 
4. Property Owner or its transferees will be the user or potential user of the PUD. 
 
5. The fee required to be submitted with the Preliminary PUD and Final PUD application has 

been paid. 
 
6. The Planning and Zoning Commission held public hearings on the Preliminary PUD and 

Final PUD following notice as required by ordinances of the City of Hermantown. 
 
7. The City Council allowed public comments on the Final PUD on December 16, 2019 and 

January 21, 2020. 
 
8. The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Hermantown submitted its report and 

recommendation on the Final PUD to the City Council within the time period set forth in the ordinances of 
the City of Hermantown. 

 
9. The City Council considered the Final PUD after receiving the report and recommendation 

of the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
10. The Final PUD is consistent with the Hermantown Comprehensive Plan and is a permitted 

use in the R-3 Zone District in which it is located.  
 
11. The tract of land (“Land”) affected by the Final PUD is legally described on Exhibit A 

attached hereto and is owned by the Property Owner. 
 
12. The Final PUD incorporates a combination of housing types which will be developed in 

accordance with the Final PUD as a comprehensive development covered by a single Final PUD. 
 
13. The Final PUD includes provisions for the preservation and creation of natural amenities. 
 
14. Natural systems, resources, topography, vegetation and other natural features will be 

preserved and enhanced to the extent possible.  
 
15. The Final PUD includes a variety of housing and community types.  
 
16. The Final PUD is located on more than two and one half (2 ½) acres of contiguous land. 
 
17. The Final PUD includes residential uses. 
 
18. The Final PUD provides a public benefit with the following: 

 
18.1. A variety of housing and community types with its mix of single family, multi-

family and senior housing. 
 
18.2. Pedestrian and non-motorized travel facilities through its internal sidewalk system 

which connects to the public right of way. 
 



  
 
 

3 

18.3. Utilization of design, landscape and architectural features to create a pleasing 
environment by its use of different and quality building materials and shared green space. 

 
18.4. Enhanced efficiency in the provision of utility services, public infrastructure or 

public services by way of utilizing density and smaller lot sizes so the utilities and roadways are 
able to serve more residences. 
 

18.5. Significant additional tax base. 
 

18.6. Satisfaction of the Section 1105.11 of the Hermantown Zoning Code goal of 
providing multi-use development.  
 
19. Maps were provided with the Plan and contained the following: 

 
19.1. The existing topographic character of the land. 
 
19.2. A composite of all natural amenities of the site including steep slopes, drainage 

ways plus marshes and ponds. 
 
19.3. The size of the site and proposed uses of the land to be developed together with an 

identification of off-site land uses. 
 
19.4. The density of land use to be allocated to the overall development. 
 
19.5. The approximate location of thoroughfares. 
 
19.6. The location of common open space. 

 
20. The Final PUD includes the following: 

 
20.1. A statement of the ownership of all land involved in the Final PUD.  
 
20.2. An explanation of the general character of the Final PUD. 
 
20.3. A general indication of the expected time schedule of the Final PUD. 
 
20.4. A statement describing the ultimate ownership and maintenance of all parts of the 

development including streets, structures and open space. These will also be addressed in a 
Development Agreement(s) for development approved by the Final PUD. 

 
20.5. A statement describing how all necessary governmental services will be provided 

for the Final PUD. This will also be addressed in the Development Agreement(s) related to the 
development approved by the Final PUD.  
 
21. The approval of the Final PUD is subject to the following modifications/conditions: 
 

21.1. The Property Owner will have one year from the date of the Final PUD approval 
to enter into a Development Agreement with the City. 

 



  
 
 

4 

21.2. Property Owner will provide for the ongoing maintenance of the Public Ways, 
landscaping features and other improvements constructed as part of the Final PUD and also provide 
for snow removal, salting, sanding, and other such work within the Public Ways at Property 
Owner’s cost and expense. 

 
21.3. No separate frontage on a public roadway will be required for any building 

constructed in the Land. The frontage of the Land on Maple Grove Road and Lavaque Road will 
satisfy the road frontage requirements for all buildings on the Land. 

 
21.4. The Property Owner is required to submit preliminary and final construction 

documents (water, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, Public Ways, etc.) according to City standards and 
coordinated with the City Engineer which will be incorporated into the Development Agreement 
for the Final PUD. 

 
21.5. Installation of water and sanitary sewer by Property Owner will be covered by a 

Development Agreement with the City.  All utility plans shall be approved by the City Engineer.  
The Development Agreement shall specify the amount of a financial guarantee to be held by the 
City from the time of commencement of work until such a time as the City accepts as complete the 
new public infrastructure.  All drainage and utility systems shall have associated easements.  The 
Property Owner shall enter into a Development Agreement before the start of the construction of 
any portion of the Final PUD. 
 

21.6. The Property Owner shall pay park dedication fees according to the following 
schedule.  Payments are due at the time set forth in the Development Agreement.  
 

The 18 single family homes will be $19,800 ($1,100/unit) at time of plat  
 
The 16 senior villas will be $12,800 ($800/unit) at time of plat  
 
The 103 unit senior building will be $46,000 at time of plat broken down as 

follows: 
 
 91 – 1 bedroom/studios: $36,400 ($400/unit) 
 
 12 – 2 bedroom units: $9,600 ($800/unit) 
 
There will be approximately 201 bedrooms total at $150/bedroom: $30,150, which 

will be collected at time of building permit 
 
Total at time of plat: $78,600 
 
Total at time of building permit: $30,150 
 
Total approximate park dedication: $108,750 

 
22. The City Council hereby approves and adopts the additional Findings of Fact set forth on 

Exhibit B attached hereto.  
 
23. The approval given by this Resolution is not effective until Property Owner executes and 

delivers an acceptance of the terms and provisions of this Resolution. 



  
 
 

5 

 
24. The approval made by this resolution only extends to the Final PUD as defined in this 

resolution.  
 

B. CONCLUSION 
 

On the basis of the foregoing Findings of Fact, the City Council of the City of Hermantown is 
hereby resolved as follows: 

 
1. The Final PUD meets the intent of the R-3, Residential Zoning District, Chapter 11 – 

Planned Unit Developments, and the overall goals and policies of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
2. The Final PUD meets the Comprehensive Plan for residential development and standards 

of a Planned Unit Development by providing public benefit through enhanced and coordinated development 
design and a greater variety of housing types in the community. 

 
3. The Final PUD hereby approved is hereby expressly subject to the following conditions: 
 

3.1. That the Final PUD will be constructed as described in the plans accompanying 
the Application and the conditions contained herein and the Development Agreement. 

 
3.2. The Zoning Administrator of the City of Hermantown shall be notified at least five 

(5) days in advance of the commencement of the work authorized hereunder and shall be notified 
of its completion within five (5) days thereafter. 

 
3.3. No change shall be made in the Final PUD without written permission being 

previously obtained from the City of Hermantown. 
 
3.4. Property Owner shall grant access to the site at all reasonable times during and 

after construction to authorized representatives of the City of Hermantown for inspection to see 
that the terms of this permit are met. 

 
3.5. Property Owner is initially and continually in compliance with all of the ordinances 

and regulations of the City of Hermantown. 
 
3.6. Trees and brush cannot be burned on the Land, but may be chipped and shredded. 
 
3.7. An MPCA Stormwater Permit and erosion control measures must be in place prior 

to any construction on the Final PUD. 
 
3.8. All utility line easements shall be observed and any encroachment into the utility 

right-of-way shall only be permitted with the written approval of the entity that owns the utility. 
 
3.9. The Property Owner shall take measures to control erosion that has the potential 

to damage adjacent land, and control sedimentation that has the potential to leave the site. 
 
3.10. Dimensional requirements of lots, setbacks, and rights-of-way shall be according 

to the site plan submitted with the Application and table 1 below. 
 



  
 
 

6 

Table 1.  R-3 
Residential 
Requirements  

R-3 Requirement Provided – Single 
Family and Fourplex 

Recommended 

Minimum lot area ½ acre 
(2 units/acre) 

5,876 square feet 
15,246 square minimum 

5,876 square feet 
15,246 square 
minimum 

Minimum lot width (at 
setback line) 

100 feet  52 foot minimum 
161 foot minimum 

52 foot minimum 
161 foot 
minimum 

Minimum front yard  50 feet from public ROW 25’ from roadway surface 
– single family 
25’ from roadway - 
fourplex 

25’ from roadway 
surface for all 
structures 

Minimum side yard 10 feet, 25 feet aggregate 6.5 feet minimum, 13 feet 
aggregate – single family 
20’ minimum, 40’ 
aggregate - fourplex 

6.5 feet 
minimum, 13 feet 
aggregate 
20’ minimum, 40’ 
aggregate - 
fourplex 

Minimum rear yard 
Main structure 

40 feet Varies – 29.5 feet 
minimum from main 
structure  

29.5’ feet 
minimum 

Minimum rear yard 
Accessory structure 

10 feet N/A N/A 

Minimum side yard 
Accessory structure 

10 feet N/A N/A 

Roadway ROW width 66 feet 24’ driving surface with 
curb and gutter 

24’ driving 
surface with curb 
and gutter 

 
4. The Property Owner will have one year from the date of the Final PUD approval to enter 

into a Development Agreement with the City. 
 
5. Property Owner is requested to submit preliminary and final construction documents 

(water, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, roadway, etc.) according to City standards and coordinated with the 
City Engineer as will be more fully described in the Development Agreement. 

 
6. Property Owner must enter into a Development Agreement with the City governing the 

terms of all work done on utilities, stormwater and Public Ways and other matters.  All utility plans shall 
be approved by the City Engineer.  The Development Agreement shall specify the amount of a financial 
guarantee to be held by the City from the time of commencement of work until such a time as the City 
accepts as complete the new public infrastructure.  All drainage and utility easements shall have associated 
easements.  The Property Owner shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City for all public 
utilities and other matters related to the Final PUD prior to the Plat covering the Final PUD being executed 
and recorded. 

 
7. The Property Owner shall pay park dedication fees according to the following schedule.  

Payments are due at the time of approval of the Final PUD or as agreed to in the Development Agreement. 



  
 
 

7 

 
7.1. The 18 single family homes will be $19,800 ($1,100/unit) at time of plat  
 
7.2. The 16 senior villas will be $12,800 ($800/unit) at time of plat  
 
7.3. The 103 unit senior building will be $46,000 at time of plat broken down as 

follows: 
 

7.3.1. 91 – 1 bedroom/studios: $36,400 ($400/unit) 
 
7.3.2. 12 – 2 bedroom units: $9,600 ($800/unit) 

 
7.4. There will be approximately 201 bedrooms total at $150/bedroom: $30,150, which 

will be collected at time of building permit 
 
Total at time of plat: $78,600 
 
Total at time of building permit: $30,150 
 
Total approximate park dedication: $108,750 

 
8. The Property Owner shall sign a consent form assenting to all conditions of this Resolution.  
 
9. The Property Owner shall pay an administrative fine of $750 per violation of any condition 

of this Resolution.   
 
10. The approval made by this resolution extends only to the Final PUD as defined in this 

resolution.  
 
11. After the conditions of this Final PUD are satisfied, the boundaries of the Land affected by 

the Final PUD shall be noted on the Official Zoning Map as it is amended from time to time. The Official 
Zoning Map shall include a numbered reference to the Final PUD on file with the City.  

 
 

Councilor ___ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
  
 

The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ___, and upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 

 
 
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
 
 
 WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted January 21, 2020. 
 
  



  
 
 

8 

ACCEPTANCE OF RESOLUTION 
 

 JP Holding Co LLC (“Developer”) hereby acknowledges and accepts the conditions specified on the 
foregoing Resolution and covenants and agrees to comply with each and every such condition. 
 
 Developer acknowledges that the failure to comply with all of the modifications and conditions shall 
constitute a violation of the Hermantown Zoning Ordinance and that the City of Hermantown may, in such 
event, exercise and enforce its rights against the undersigned by instituting any appropriate action or proceeding 
to prevent, restrain, correct or abate the violation including, without limitation, exercising and enforcing its 
rights against any security that the undersigned may provide to the City to insure its compliance with the 
conditions contained in the foregoing Resolution and the Development Agreement to be entered into between 
City and Developer pursuant to this Resolution. 
 
 Developer acknowledges that this Resolution shall be recorded with the title to the property depicted 
in Exhibit A to the Resolution.   
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREAS, JP Holding Co LLC has executed this acceptance the _____ day of 
_______________, 2020. 
 
 DEVELOPER: 
 
 JP Holding Co LLC 
 
 
 By _____________________________________ 
       Its ___________________________________ 
       
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA   ) 
    )ss. 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _______________, 2020, 
by JP Holding Co LLC 
 
 
 ________________________________________ 
 Notary Public 
  



  
 
 

9 

EXHIBIT A 
 
South half of West half of Southwest Quarter of Southwest Quarter (S1/2 of W1/2 of SW1/4 of SW1/4), 
Section Fourteen (14), Township Fifty (50), Range Fifteen (15). 

 
 
 

  



  
 
 

10 

EXHIBIT B 
Findings of Fact Related to Final PUD 

For JP Holding Co LLC 
(“Arbours”) 

 
 
Certain information has been provided to the City Council through public testimony and by staff research 
and investigation. Based upon such information, these facts are hereby found and made as part of the City 
Council’s consideration of an application for a Final PUD for the Arbours Project.  
 

1. Notices of Planning and Zoning public hearing were mailed to property owners 1000 feet 
from the Land’s boundary.  Mailed notices were sent out to 27 property owners on July 3, 2019 for the 
Preliminary PUD and on October 3, 2019 for the Final PUD, Preliminary and Final Plat.  The Planning and 
Zoning meetings related to this application were posted in the Hermantown Star in the July 4, 2019, issue 
and the November 7, 2019 issue.  Property Owner/Taxpayer posted a notice sign on the Land fifteen (15) 
days prior to the meetings in July 2019 and November 2019.  

 
2. Property Owner/Taxpayer and City Staff have been discussing this project since February, 

2019.  The City has followed the required procedures associated with applications for planned unit 
developments.  During this process, Property Owner/Taxpayer has made modifications to the concept and 
preliminary plans based on City Staff comments.  Property Owner/Taxpayer has followed the City review 
and approval process in regards to submissions to City Staff, applications to Planning and Zoning and City 
Council. The procedures and process set forth in Chapter 11 of the City Code were followed. 

 
3. A final site plan that is drawn to scale showing the location of all structures including 

their placement, size and type as well as streets, parking areas and stall arrangement, pedestrian facilities, 
parking calculations, designed outdoor recreation areas, and common areas has been provided to the City.  

 
4. A landscape plan that shows the location, size and species of plant materials and all 

nonvegetative landscape features was provided to City. 
 
5. Building plans at a level of detail sufficient to allow parking calculations to be made and 

building elevation drawings showing architectural details and proposed building materials was provided to 
City.  

 
6. Any other information which the City requested to fully present the intention and character 

of the PUD was provided, including the perspective drawings of the single family home neighborhood, a 
view of the senior building from the interior of the site as well as from the intersection of Maple Grove and 
Lavaque Roads as well as an elevational drawing showing the height relationship from Maple Grove and 
Lavaque Roads to the senior building. 

 
7. The City will require that the Property Owner/Taxpayer execute a Development Agreement 

that will be recorded with the County Recorder or Registrar of Titles, as the case may be,  which will address 
all requirements of the Final PUD plan, agreements on utilities, roads, and other infrastructure as a condition 
to approval of the Final PUD and Plat.  

 
8. The Development Agreement will require Property Owner/Taxpayer to provide one or 

more irrevocable letters of credit in favor of the City to make sure that the obligations under the 
Development Agreement are satisfied. 

 



  
 
 

11 

9. The Land is zoned R-3, Residential.  Property Owner/Taxpayer applied for a Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) for the Land.  A PUD IS A PERMITTED USE IN AN R-3 ZONE DISTRICT. 
Section 11 of the zoning ordinance states that: “A PUD is intended to encourage a more efficient and 
creative use of land and development, more efficient and effective use of streets, utilities and public 
services; protection of natural resources; and more efficient and effective provision of recreational, public 
and open space than can be achieved through conventional development procedures.” 

 
10. The Final PUD is in close proximity to the City’s administrative services complex and will 

be a natural and complementary extension of a higher density institutional service use of the property near 
the intersection of Maple Grove Road and Lavaque Road. 

 
11. Streets.mn reviewed 7 different housing studies from 1984-2010 that analyzed single 

family housing values in relation to their close proximity to multi-family housing developments.  Five of 
the seven studies found that dense development, including workforce and market-rate housing, had 
negligible or positive effects on home values. One study found negative impact (Section 8 housing), and 
one of the studies found mixed impacts depending on the existing values of the neighborhood that public 
housing was added to. The Center for Housing Policy presented a policy brief in February 2009 which 
analyzed twelve different housing studies from 1993 – 2007 and stated in their summary: “the vast majority 
of studies have found that workforce housing does not depress neighboring property values, and may even 
raise them in some cases.” Overall, the research suggests that neighbors should have little to fear from the 
type of attractive and modestly sized developments that constitute the bulk of newly produced workforce 
housing today.  

 
12. The individual homes proposed in the Final PUD will be priced around $330,000.00 and 

will be marketed to be owned-occupied. City Staff has been working for several years to find a housing 
type that a worker at Cirrus, AAR, the City of Hermantown or the Hermantown School District can afford 
to buy within the City. This project will provide housing that will allow workers in Hermantown to own a 
home in Hermantown. Staff has also observed first hand where smaller lot sizes were used to reduce lot and 
infrastructure costs in order to provide single family housing units of 1,800 square feet in the $300,000.00 
to $350,000.00 range.  These homes were part of a larger neighborhood development with existing lots in 
excess of ½ acre in size.   A PUD IS AN ALLOWED USE IN AN R-3 ZONE DISTRICT.  

 
13. The Final PUD allows for development of Land which has minimal impediments to 

development (good access, no wetlands, minimal adjacent properties).  By providing density on this 10 acre 
site, housing needs are accomplished within a smaller development footprint than otherwise would be 
needed. 

 
14. The Final PUD provides a mix of single family, workforce housing and senior housing. 
 
15. The Final PUD includes shared green space in development.  In addition, this development 

is adjacent to the proposed Hermantown Community Connector Trail, a 2.15 mile trail from the 
Government Services Complex (City Hall) to the Essentia Wellness Center/Hermantown School Campus.  
This proposed trail would connect to the existing sidewalk located at the NW intersection of Maple Grove 
and Lavaque Road.   

 
16. The Final PUD includes an internal sidewalk system which connects to the public right of 

way and sidewalk described above. 
 

17. The Final PUD includes a requirement in the Development Agreement of the use of 
approved building materials and shared green space. 



  
 
 

12 

 
18. The Final PUD utilizes density and smaller lot sizes to allow the utilities and roadways to 

better serve more citizens. 
 
19. The Duluth Economic Development Authority and the Duluth Housing and 

Redevelopment Authority contracted with Maxfield Research, Inc. in April 2014, to provide a study for 
Workforce Housing needs in Duluth and surrounding area.  The study identified Hermantown, Duluth, 
Proctor, Rice Lake, Canosia and Lakewood Township in the Primary Market Area (“PMA”). 
 
Based on the analysis completed, Maxfield Research Inc. determined that the PMA over the next six years 
(2014-2020) could support a total of 4,470 units incorporating a variety of price points, product types and 
including owned and rental housing.  Demand by segment as follows: 
 
For-sale new construction – Single-Family 150 homes per year  
Market rate rental (80% of Area Median Income or higher) – 180 units per year  
Workforce rentals (50% to 80% of Area Median Income or higher) – 200 units per year  
Deep subsidy rentals (less than 50% of Area Median Income) – 212 units per year 
 
In addition to the Maxfield Research study, Property Owner/Taxpayer has conducted a market study for 
Senior Housing Demand in Hermantown.   
 
The PMA  – Hermantown, Duluth, Proctor, Rice Lake, Canosia Township Lakewood Township and 
Midway Township has a sizeable 75+ senior population that is projected to grow over the next five years 
(+15.7%), reversing declines experienced last decade. This growth will lead to demand for additional senior 
housing units in Hermantown.  
 
After accounting for other pending developments that may come on-line, total unmet demand in the PMA 
for the three levels of housing with services is projected to be 532 market rate units in 2023.  
 

20. The City Code allows a PUD to have standards that meet the City’s goals for each proposed 
development.  These standards include building height, density and setbacks.  

 
21. Property Owner/Taxpayer originally proposed the senior building be located in the 

Northeast portion of the Land.  City Staff requested that the building be located in the SW portion of the 
site where it would abut two county roadways vs. two residential properties/structures north of the Land.  
In addition, as Property Owner/Taxpayer progressed with engineering drawings it was determined that the 
site topography presented issues to locating the senior building in the Northeast portion of the site. 

 
22. The Final PUD has been shared with the Hermantown School Superintendent who did not 

express concerns with the Final PUD. 
 
23. The Final PUD is approximately 2.25 miles from the school campus.  Traffic from this site 

will not affect traffic around the school.  
 
24. The Final PUD was reviewed by St. Louis County, Minnesota in July 2019, because the 

Final PUD is bounded by two (2) County roads.  At the request of Vic Lund, the County Traffic Engineer, 
a trip generation study (“Study”) for the Final PUD was prepared.  Property Owner/Taxpayer engaged 
Vernon Swing, a Professional Engineer specializing in traffic engineering, to conduct the study. The Study 
took place in July and August 2019. The Study was forwarded to Vic Lund, who concurred with the report 
and stated that a permit for full driveway access on Maple Grove Road and Lavaque Road would be 



  
 
 

13 

approved without the necessity of any road or signal modifications upon receiving an application. The Study 
is available for inspection at City Hall and is attached hereto as Exhibit B-1.  

 
25. As part of the Maple Grove Road project in 2019, St. Louis County installed a two-way-

left-turn lane on Maple Grove Road, with dedicated left-turn lanes at the intersection of Maple Grove Road 
and Lavaque Road to accommodate this project. 

 
26. Property Owner/Taxpayer will be required under the Development Agreement to perform 

an additional traffic study two (2) years after the completion of the development of the Final PUD to 
reassess traffic conditions at the Maple Grove/Lavaque intersection. 

 
27. Ebenezer, which will operate the senior facility in the Final PUD, has protocols for all 

emergency services and employ well-trained staff that is equipped to handle these types of instances. Safety 
and security is the number one priority in all their senior living facilities. Ebenezer operates numerous 
similar facilities in the State of Minnesota, and other states, and has done so for several years.  

 
28. The Final PUD is adjacent to the proposed Hermantown Community Connector Trail, a 

2.15 mile trail from the Government Services Complex (City Hall) to the Essentia Wellness 
Center/Hermantown School Campus.  This proposed trail would connect to the existing sidewalk located 
at the NW intersection of Maple Grove and Lavaque Road and extend north approximately ½ mile to the 
sanitary sewer easement corridor.  From this point the trail would head northwest towards the Arrowhead 
Road/Ugstad Road intersection. 

 
29. Vic Lund, Traffic Engineer with St. Louis County advised City Staff that the County 

performed an intersection control evaluation (ICE) study of Maple Grove Road and Lavaque Road in 2013. 
At that time, the traffic volumes did not warrant a traffic signal in accordance with the Minnesota Manual 
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).  Vic Lund is of the opinion that the intersection of Maple 
Grove Road and Lavaque Road does not currently warrant a traffic signal or other traffic control measures.  
This intersection may warrant improvements in the future such as a traffic signal or roundabout. In order to 
provide a definitive analysis, a current trip generation study would be required regarding the intersection 
and a signal warrant analysis would be performed.  The Property Owner/Taxpayer will be required under 
the Development Agreement to perform these studies two (2) years after the completion of the development 
of the Final PUD Plan in order to assess the need for intersection improvements.  

 
30. The intersection of Maple Grove Road and Lavaque Road is an entirely County-owned 

intersection and therefore St. Louis County is responsible to ensure this intersection is performing safely 
and efficiently while also looking out for future needs. St. Louis County has reviewed the Study of this 
proposed development and did not have any concerns about the additional traffic it may add and has 
indicated that it will issue access permits when requested. 

 
31. An excessive service fee will be addressed in the Development Agreement for the Project.  
 
32. The senior building approved as part of the Final PUD will be a fully sprinkled building as 

required by the Minnesota State Building Codes.  
 
33. Ebeneezer staffs ‘awake’ caregivers at their facilities 24/7, 365 days a year to help care for 

residents, and address emergencies.    
 



  
 
 

14 

34. The Land is within the Airport Safety Zone C, which only regulates height.  The C zone 
restricts building height perimeter to a 1580 elevation.  The proposed senior building is at approximately 
1399 FFE; a 50’ tall structure puts the elevation at 1449 well below the airport zoning height restrictions. 

 
35. City Staff along with St. Louis County have been discussing the need for workforce 

housing in the City and what methods were available to achieve it for several years.  Development costs 
are traditionally higher in this region then other urban centers and with the lack of volume builders in the 
area constructing multiple housing units at a time, the average construction cost and unit sales price have 
been high. It is not uncommon for new single family homes on a one-half acre lot with water and sewer 
service to cost over $500,000.00 for a 2,000 square foot home in the City. Other than providing public 
subsidies, one method to promote workforce housing is the allowance of increased density.  The increased 
density allows for the maximization of public infrastructure (water, sanitary and roads) and can contribute 
to lower construction and housing costs.   

 
36. The Final PUD is for 137 units comprised of 103 senior living units, 18 single-family 

homes and 4 -fourplex senior villas (16 units total).  The senior building is on a 4-acre lot and the single 
and senior villas units are on the remaining six acres in the plat. 

 
37. The senior building is a multi-story structure and has a proposed density of 25.75 units/acre 

(103 units/4 acres).  Of these 103 units, 18 are memory care units, 25 are assisted living units and 60 are 
independent living units.  The proposed facility entails 75.2% of the site density yet generates 45% of the 
traffic for the development with an average of 2.40 trips/day. 

 
38. The single family and senior villas are located on six acres and have a proposed density of 

5.7 units/acre (36 units/6 acres).  Pursuant to the Study, these units account for 55% of the traffic for the 
development which is an average of 8.45 trips/day.  

 
39. The total proposed Arbours development is anticipated to have 253 residents with up to 20 

staff at a time associated with the senior building facility. 
 
40. Comparing this project to the Deerfield Townhomes development with its 176 units and 

6.7 units/acre density, the Deerfield development has a lower density, however there are more people living 
on the property.  There are approximately 414 residents at Deerfield who create 1487 daily traffic trips.  
Deerfield Townhomes with its lower density actually has 1.6 times the resident population and generates 
2.7 times more daily trips than the Arbours. The City has not received complaints about traffic congestion 
in the vicinity of the Deerfield Townhome project.  

 
41. City staff has reviewed new house start data and home sales in Hermantown from 2015 to 

the present.  Staff reviewed single family development projects with typical ½ acre lot sizes with homes 
constructed within the last 10 years.  This data was obtained through St. Louis County Market Sales and 
Value data, and is as follows: 
 

The residential developments reviewed with the average sales/start prices are as follows: 
Jackson Estates 1st-3rd Additions: $488,500 
Jackson Estates 4th Addition (New Construction): $503,000 
Sugar Maple Estates: $474,000 
Timber Trails: $451,000 
Heartwoods (Mix of twinhomes and single family on lots less than ½ acre): $309,500 
Greystone: $516,400 
Oak Ridge: $435,250 



  
 
 

15 

Patriot Drive (twinhomes): $378,750 
 
Based on sales information, the average price of homes in these developments is $444,547.  New home 
construction costs for single-family homes on ½ acre lots are rarely under $500,000.00 in Hermantown.  
 
Property Owner/Taxpayer has indicated that the starting price for the single-family homes will be 
$330,000.00. 
 

42. The proposed project would be constructed solely with private funds.   
 
43. The City engaged a contractor to install water service to the Land in association with the 

Maple Grove roadway improvement project in mid-2019.  The cost of this service extension to the south 
property line of the site was $66,190.00.   As part of the Development Agreement, Property 
Owner/Taxpayer will be responsible to repay the City this amount either at time of platting or as an 
assessment to the Land. 

 
44. Property tax will be generated on the Final PUD that consists of 18 single family homes, 

16 senior villas and the 103 senior housing units. Per the County Assessor, the approximate valuations for 
the various housing structures are: 
 

1. Single family residential with slab construction: $330,000 
2. Single family residential with basement: $350,000 
3. Senior Villa (fourplex) with slab construction: $315,000 
4. 103 unit senior housing building: $12,500,000 
 
Per the County Auditor, approximate property taxes for the various housing structures per year are: 
 
1. Single family residential with slab construction:  $5,110 x 9 homes = $45,990 
2. Single family residential with basement: $5,400 x 9 homes = $48,600 
3. Senior Villa (fourplex) with slab construction: $4,880 x 16 homes = $78,080 
4. 103 unit senior housing building: $243,414 
 
Property taxes are primarily broken into three components: County, City and School.  The proposed 
development would generate the following: 
 
1. County taxes: $188,263/year 
2. City taxes: $116,496/year 
3. School taxes: $108,083/year 
 
This tax revenue is equivalent to a 1.5% reduction in the tax burden for the taxpayers in the City. 
In addition to property taxes this project will also generate $108,750.00 in park dedication fees. 

 
45. In addition to the property taxes generated by the Final PUD, the senior building facility 

will create the equivalent of approximately forty (40) full-time and part-time positions. There will be both 
part-time and full-time positions at various wage rates and skill levels including skilled nursing, 
housekeeping, cooks and dining assistants and professional management.   

 
46. The construction of the senior housing building is expected to take place over an eighteen 

(18) month period.  The single family and fourplex units will also commence construction in 2020 with the 



  
 
 

16 

build-out being market dependent and potentially over a three year period.  These construction activities 
will provide numerous construction jobs during this period. 

 
47. Property Owner/Taxpayer provided concept site and engineering drawings in May 2019, 

which were followed with preliminary engineering drawings and stormwater calculations in June 2019 as 
part of the Planning and Zoning meeting Preliminary PUD review.  These plans were further modified and 
refined following City Staff and City Engineer review during September and October as part of the Final 
PUD and Plat review. 

 
48. Property Owner/Taxpayer has submitted preliminary engineering plans for the 

development as well as storm water calculations.  Property Owner/Taxpayer will be required to submit final 
engineering documents and storm water calculations prior to commencement of any site development work.  
These documents have been reviewed by City Staff and the City Engineer.  All stormwater work will be 
required to be performed pursuant to the Development Agreement and covered by letter(s) of credit.  

 
49. The proposed driveways are a minimum of 25’ in length.  This length is similar to other 

permitted PUD’s (Patriot Drive Townhomes and Heartwoods). 
 
50. Property Owner/Taxpayer performed whatever due diligence investigations it deemed 

necessary before purchasing the Land.  To date Property Owner/Taxpayer has conducted 17 soil borings, a 
wetland assessment and delineations and other due diligence investigations.  No issues have been 
discovered.  

 
51. Undeveloped or underdeveloped property surrounds this proposed development, which can 

continue to serve as wildlife habitat. The Development Agreement will require appropriate landscaping of 
the Final PUD and as much tree preservation as is possible.  

 
52. Landscaping will be required as part of the Development Agreement. A large existing stand 

of trees buffers the properties to the North of the project.  The sanitary sewer easement abuts the east side 
of the Land, which limits development within this 100’ corridor. The Land is a corner lot abutting two 
County roadways.  The two residential properties on the south side of Maple Grove Road are a minimum 
of 325’ from the senior building structure.  

 
53. The City Engineer will review and approve preliminary and final construction drawings.  

No building permits will be issued until the City Engineer approves these documents. 
 
54. The City is pursuing a grant with the MNDOT for the construction of a 2.15 mile trail from 

the Government Services Complex (City Hall) to the Essentia Wellness Center/Hermantown School 
Campus.  This proposed trail would connect to the existing sidewalk located at the NW intersection of 
Maple Grove and Lavaque Road.  The City is requesting $600,000 from the MN Department of 
Transportation for the project with the City’s required match being $120,000.  The Park Dedication fees 
anticipated to be generated by the Final PUD are approximately $108,750.00 which can be used towards 
the City’s required match. 

 
55. The Final PUD is a privately maintained development.  The Development Agreement will 

require that Property Owner/Taxpayer be responsible for snow removal and storage. Property 
Owner/Taxpayer will be responsible for any trucking or removal of snow from the project at Property 
Owner/Taxpayer’s cost. 
 



  
 
 

17 

56. The exact mix of units and corresponding real estate taxes derived from the Final PUD may 
change slightly during the final design of the Final PUD. These changes will be reviewed and are subject 
to the approval of the City.  
 
  



  
 
 

18 

EXHIBIT B-1 
Trip Generation Study 

 

 
 



  
 
 

19 

 
 
 



  
 
 

20 

 



Resolution No. 2019-209 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY PLAT OF THE ARBOURS OF MAPLE GROVE 
IMPOSING CONDITIONS ON THE APPROVAL OF THE FINAL PLAT AND AUTHORIZING 
AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO EXECUTE SUCH PLAT UPON THE 

SATISFACTION OF SUCH CONDITIONS 
 
 WHEREAS, paper prints of the preliminary plat of The Arbours of Maple Grove (“Plat”) have been 
submitted to the City Clerk; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the property owner (“Owner”) of the Preliminary Plat has requested that the City 
Council approve the Plat; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hermantown Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended the approval 
of the Preliminary Plat; and 
 

WHEREAS, upon the satisfaction of the conditions set forth herein, the Preliminary Plat will satisfy 
the requirements of the Hermantown Zoning Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has duly considered this matter and believes that it is in the best 

interests of the City of Hermantown that the Preliminary Plat be approved, subject to certain conditions 
being met. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 

Minnesota, as follows: 
 
1. The Preliminary Plat is hereby approved. 
 
2. The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Final Plat 

on behalf of the City of Hermantown when the Mayor, City Clerk, City Attorney determine that all of the 
following items have been satisfied: 

 
(a) Either (i) the construction of the waterlines and sewerlines within the Plat are 

completed in accordance with City specifications or (ii) the Owner provides the City with a 
performance bond, letter of credit or cash deposit in an amount equal to 125% of the City Engineer’s 
estimate of cost of constructing the waterlines and sewerlines within the Plat, that is in form and 
substance acceptable to the City Attorney and provided by a financial institution or surety 
acceptable to the City to be in effect for one year to cover the cost of constructing the waterlines 
and sewerlines within the Plat. 

 
(b) The Stormwater Certificate has been issued and recorded and all stormwater 

management facilities required by the Stormwater Certificate have been completed or an irrevocable 
letter of credit in an amount equal to125%of City Engineer’s estimate of the cost of construction of all 
stormwater management facilities required by the Stormwater Certificate is provided to City to ensure 
the completion of all stormwater management facilities required by the Stormwater Certificate.  

 
(c) The construction of the Public Way, shown on the Plat is complete in accordance 

with the Infrastructure Plans and Specifications or the Public Way is completed or an irrevocable letter 
of credit in the amount equal to one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the City Engineer’s 
estimate of the cost of construction of the Public Way in accordance with the Infrastructure Plans and 



Specifications. The letter of credit must be irrevocable and in form and substance acceptable to the 
City Administrator and City Attorney.  

 
(d) The Owner agrees to pay for the extension of the watermain from Maple Grove 

Road to the south property line of the development in the sum of $66,190.00 in cash or pursuant to 
an assessment pursuant to the terms of the Development Agreement. 

 
(e) The Owner pays all costs incurred by the City of Hermantown in connection with 

the review and consideration of the Plat to the date such Plat is executed, and executes and delivers 
a Development Agreement, in form and substance acceptable to the City Attorney and approved 
by the City Council, wherein, among other things, the Owner agrees to pay all costs incurred Owner 
or by the City in connection with the Plat and construction and review and approval of the 
waterlines, sewerlines, stormwater management facilities and Public Way within such Plat to the 
date the Plat is executed.  The execution and delivery and recording of a Development Agreement 
in form and substance acceptable to City will satisfy this requirement. 

 
(f) The City Attorney examines or causes the title of the land underlying the Plat to 

be examined and the Owner completes all actions required to be taken by the City Attorney to vest 
title in the parties determined by the City Attorney required to execute the Plat. 

 
(g) The Plat dedication on the final Plat is in form and substance acceptable to the City 

Attorney and City Engineer. 
 
(h) The final Plat is duly and properly executed by all parties with an interest in the 

land underlying the Plat, as determined by the City Attorney, including the St. Louis County 
Surveyor, and the signatures of such parties are duly and properly notarized. 

 
(i) The City is provided with the copies of the final Plat as is required under the 

Hermantown subdivision platting regulations. 
 
(j) The final Plat is approved in writing by the City Planner, City Surveyor/Engineer 

and City Engineer as being in compliance with the Hermantown subdivision platting regulations or 
if found as not being in compliance, the Owner completes all actions required to be taken by the 
City Planner and City Surveyor/Engineer to cause it to be in compliance with such regulations. 

 
(k) Any deficiency noted by the City Surveyor/Engineer on the Preliminary Plat is 

corrected on the final Plat. 
 

(l) Park dedication fees are payable in the amounts and at the times set forth in the 
Development Agreement  

 



Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
  
 

The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ____, and upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 

 
 
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
 
 
 WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted January 21, 2020. 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2020-12 
January 6, 2020  Agenda Item: 12-C 
 
 
TO: Mayor & City Council 

 

 
FROM:  Paul Senst, Public Works 

Director 
DATE: January 9, 2020 

 
Meeting Date:  1/21/20 

SUBJECT: Purchase of F350 Chassis and 
Truck Body for Sewer Utility 

Agenda Item: 12-C Resolution 2020-12 
 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Award Purchase of F350 Chassis to Boyer Trucks and upfit of truck to Truck Utilities Inc.  

 
BACKGROUND 
The Hermantown PW/Utilities has asked to purchase a Sewer Service Chassis and Service Truck Body 
build. This truck will be used to replace the existing sewer utility truck H22. The existing truck will be kept 
for about a year and then will be sold off. Our existing truck is in need of about $8,000 of repairs that we 
can see coming in the next two years on a truck that has an approximate $8,000 value. By minimizing the 
existing truck usage we can reduce our operating costs by going from a diesel to a gas motor, going to a 
single rear wheel axle and minimize the repair costs.  
 
The purchase of this F 350 Chassis is from Boyer Trucks - $36,356.80 
The box and upfitting of this truck will be from Truck Utilities Inc.- $28,044.00 
 
The purchase of this Truck Chassis and Build are part of the 2019 Capital Improvement Plan under the 
2019 1 TON Sewer Service Truck Chassis. This will require a budget amendment for the 2020 budget 
which will be presented in a future meeting. 
 
This equipment is purchased through the State of Minnesota State Bid process. 
 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
CIP – 601-494300-544 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Quote from Boyer Ford Trucks, Inc. 
Quote from Truck Utilities, Inc.  
 
 
 
 
 



 

Z:\Shared\CITY COUNCIL\RESOLUTIONS\2020\2020-12 2020 Sewer Utility Truck.doc 

Resolution No. 2020-12 
 
RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT FOR 2020 FORD F350 CHASSIS TO BOYER FORD 

TRUCKS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $36,356.80 AND THE TRUCK BODY TO TRUCK 
UTILITIES, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $28,044.00 PLUS APPLICABLE TAXES AND FEES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown purchased a 2020 Ford F350 Chassis; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as part of the purchase of the 2020 Ford F350 Chassis the upfit of the truck body is 
needed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the chassis and truck body desired by the City is available on the “State 
Contract;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, the chassis will be purchased from Boyer Ford Trucks, Inc. and the truck body will 
be purchased from Truck Utilities, Inc.; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after fully considering this matter, the City Council of the City of Hermantown 
believes that it is in the best interest of the City of Hermantown to award the contract for the chassis to 
Boyer Ford Trucks, Inc. and the truck body to Truck Utilities, Inc. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hermantown as 
follows: 
 

1.  Boyer Ford Trucks, Inc. is hereby determined to be able to provide the chassis to the City 
pursuant to the State Contract. 
 

2. Truck Utilities, Inc. is hereby determined to be able to provide the truck body to the City 
pursuant to the State Contract. 

 
3. The price of $36,356.80 plus applicable taxes and fees for the chassis and the price of 

$28,044.00 for the truck body in accordance with the State Contract is hereby accepted. 
 
4. Per the CIP the funds for the payment of the chassis and truck body will be paid from Fund 

No. 601 and expensed to 601-494300-544. 
 

 Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ____ and, upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 Councilors  
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
  

 
 
WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted January 21, 2020. 

 







 

 
2770   5 th    Avenue   South  

Fargo,   ND   58103  
2370   English   Street  
St   Paul,   MN   55109  

5320   Kansas   Avenue   
Kansas   City,   KS   66106  

 
 

Paul   Senst  
City   of   Hermantown  
4971   Lightning   Drive  
Hermantown,   MN   55811  

 

Quote#:   68238944   December   13   2019  
 
218-391-0065  
psenst@heermantownmn.com  

 

IN   RESPONSE   TO   YOUR   REQUEST   WE   ARE   PLEASED   TO   OFFER   THE   FOLLOWING:  
Aluminum   service   body   to   be   mounted   on   a   Ford   F350   4x4,   SRW,   60”CA  
 

● Knapheide   A6110   aluminum   service   body,   109”   long,   81”   wide,   49”   cargo   floor   width $17,798.00  
Installed  
LED   exterior   light   package   including   strobe   lights   integrated   in   rear   tail   lights  
Exterior   painted   white  
Aluminum   modular   cab   guard,   painted   white  
Rear   bumper   with   pintle   recess,   knaplined  
Bumper   vise   socket   welded   ver�cally   into   right   side   of   bumper   for   removable   vise   bracket  
Aluminum   e-trac   on   right   side   cargo   wall,   two   rows   evenly   spaced   ver�cally  
Compartment   configura�on  

● L1V   -   (1)   C-Tech   drawer   set,   w/   liners,   red   fronts,   1-7”,   1-5”,   5-3”,  Included  
Top   two   3”   drawers   have   front   to   back   dividers,   remaining   drawers   are   open  

● LH   -   (1)   adj   shelf   with   dividers Included  
● LRV   -   (1)   adj   shelf   with   dividers Included  
● R1V   -   (2)   adj   shelves   with   dividers Included  
● RH   -   (1)   adj   shelf   with   dividers Included  
● RRV   -   (6)   adj   locking   swivel   hooks,   2-2-2   configura�on Included  
● Receiver   style   vise   mount,   to   use   vise   at   side   and   rear   of   body $240.00  
● LED   compartment   lights,   one   strip   per   compartment $600.00  
● Aluminum   goal   post   style   ladder   rack   with   (4)   4”   pvc   tubes   incorporated   in   rack. $1,500.00  

20”   ID   for   ladder   at   top   (must   clear   cab   roof),   PVC   tubes   mounted   on   angle   with   rubber   caps   
at   both   ends.   Front   of   tubes   flush   with   front   of   body.   Rack   mounted   on   top   of   le�   side   pack.  
Rack   includes   grab   handle   to   access   cargo   area  

● (10)   2”   PVC   tubes   mounted   ver�cally   on   le�   cargo   wall   using   conduit   track   and   clamps,  $875.00  
hold   bo�om   of   tube   off   floor   for   cleanout  

● Receiver   style   hitch  $510.00  
● RV   style   trailer   socket $130.00  
● Heavy   duty   aluminum   folding   step   mounted   on   rear   of   bumper,   le�   side.   Mount   for   access   to   cargo   area $100.00  
● LED   grill   strobes $625.00  
● Wire   circuit   for   LED   rear   tail   light   strobes $345.00  
● Whelen   R2LPHPA   LED   amber   strobe   bar   mounted   on   center   of   cab   guard $875.00  
● Dimensions   1200w   pure   sine   wave   inverter $2,254.00  

Do   not   mount   inverter,   run   circuits   to   back   of   cab   with   addi�on   length.   Customer   is   installing  
shelf   unit   in   cab   and   will   mount   inverter   in   cab   when   shelves   have   been   mounted.   Leave   3’   of   wire   for   
customer   to   place   inverter.  

● (2)   110v   duplex   boxes,   one   mounted   at   rear   of   right   side   pack,   one   whip   in   cab $470.00  
● Go   LIght,   remote   controlled   work   light   mounted   on   right   side   of   cab   guard $822.00  

 

 
WWW.TRUCKUTILITIES.COM  

 
PAGE   1   ��   2  

  

http://www.truckutilities.com/?utm_source=Sales%20Quotes&utm_medium=Truck%20Utilities%20Logo&utm_content=Header&utm_campaign=Proposals
https://www.facebook.com/TruckUtilities?ref_type=bookmark
https://twitter.com/TruckUtilities
http://www.pinterest.com/TruckUtilities/
http://www.truckutilities.com/?utm_source=Sales%20Quotes&utm_medium=Web%20Address&utm_content=Footer&utm_campaign=Proposals
https://www.youtube.com/user/TruckUtilities
https://www.linkedin.com/company/truck-utilities?trk=company_name
https://plus.google.com/b/106240547491914277252/106240547491914277252/about


 

 
2770   5 th    Avenue   South  

Fargo,   ND   58103  
2370   English   Street  
St   Paul,   MN   55109  

5320   Kansas   Avenue   
Kansas   City,   KS   66106  

 
 

Paul   Senst  
City   of   Hermantown  
4971   Lightning   Drive  
Hermantown,   MN   55811  

 

Quote#:   68238944   December   13   2019  
 
218-391-0065  
psenst@heermantownmn.com  

 

● RAM   computer   stand   mounted   in   cab $900.00  
Total   Price   of   Build   $28,044.00  

 
 

 

Pricing   does   not   include   sales   tax,    Please   contact   me   if   you   have   any   ques�ons,  

 

Paul   Warner  
651-252-9530   |   1-800-869-1075   x274  
paulw@trucku�li�es.com  

 

I   WISH   TO   SUBMIT   MY   ORDER   ABOVE   _____________________   TODAY'S   DATE:  
 

PLEASE   PRINT   NAME   AND   TITLE    ________________________________   PO   #:  
 

 

 
WWW.TRUCKUTILITIES.COM  

 
PAGE   2   ��   2  

  

http://www.truckutilities.com/?utm_source=Sales%20Quotes&utm_medium=Truck%20Utilities%20Logo&utm_content=Header&utm_campaign=Proposals
https://www.facebook.com/TruckUtilities?ref_type=bookmark
https://twitter.com/TruckUtilities
http://www.pinterest.com/TruckUtilities/
http://www.truckutilities.com/?utm_source=Sales%20Quotes&utm_medium=Web%20Address&utm_content=Footer&utm_campaign=Proposals
https://www.youtube.com/user/TruckUtilities
https://www.linkedin.com/company/truck-utilities?trk=company_name
https://plus.google.com/b/106240547491914277252/106240547491914277252/about












City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2020-14 
January 21, 2020  Agenda Item: 12-E 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  David Bolf, City Engineer 

DATE: January 14, 2020 
 

Meeting Date:  1/21/20 

SUBJECT: Section 24 Trunk Sewer Spur Agenda Item: 12-E Resolution 2020-14 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Award Construction Bid provided by Utility Systems of America for Section 24 Trunk Sewer Spur 

 
BACKGROUND 
The bid opening for the above-mentioned project was conducted on Thursday, October 24, 2019 at 10:00 
a.m. at City Hall.  Sealed bids were received from four (4) contractors, with the low bidder being Utility 
Systems of America, Inc. in the amount of $4,209,784.30. The engineering estimate for the project was 
$4,656,642.75.   
 
The bid was good for 120 days and we were waiting for the Army Corp of Engineers permit.  We expect to 
have that permit by Tuesday, January 21, 2020.   
  
It is recommended that the City award the construction contract for the Section 24 Trunk Sewer Spur project 
to Utility Systems of America, Inc. in the amount of $4,209.784.30.

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
Sales Tax 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
 



Resolution No. 2020-14 
 
 RESOLUTION RECEIVING BIDS AND AWARDING CONTRACT FOR 
 SECTION 24 TRUNK SEWER SPUR IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 448  

IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,209,784.30 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Hermantown duly advertised for bids for Section 24 Trunk Sewer Spur 
Improvement District No. 448 Maple Grove Road within the City of Hermantown; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City will finance the Project from an issue of tax-exempt bonds; and 

 
WHEREAS, bids on such project were publicly opened and tabulated by the Consulting Engineer 

and City Clerk on October 24, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, a transcript of such bids is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Consulting Engineer reviewed the bid of the lowest bidder to confirm its 

accuracy; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Consulting Engineer reviewed the bid of the lowest bidder and found it to be 
technically responsive to the specifications and also investigated the experience, past record of 
performance and capacity of the low bidder to perform the work contracted to be performed within the 
stated time period; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the basis of such review, the Consulting Engineer has recommended that the 
lowest bidder, Utility Systems of America, Inc. (“Contractor”) be awarded the contract for Section 24 
Trunk Sewer Spur Improvement District No. 448; and  
 

WHEREAS, after fully considering this matter, the City Council believes that it is in the best 
interests of the City of Hermantown to award the contract for such improvement to Contractor. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hermantown, 
Minnesota, as follows: 
 

1. Contractor is hereby found, determined and declared to be the lowest responsible bidder 
for Section 24 Trunk Sewer Spur Improvement District No. 448. 

 
2. The bid of Contractor is in the amount of $4,209,784.30 for Section 24 Trunk Sewer Spur 

Improvement District No. 448 for such bid option in accordance with the plans and specifications and 
advertisements for bids shall be and hereby is accepted. 
 
 3. The Consulting Engineer is hereby directed to prepare a contract between the City of 
Hermantown and Contractor as soon as possible and submit it to Contractor for execution by it. 
 

4. Upon execution of such contract by Contractor and its submission of a performance bond, 
payment bond and certificate of insurance acceptable to the City Attorney, Mayor and City Clerk are 
hereby authorized and directed to execute such contract for and on behalf of the City of Hermantown. 
 

5. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to return forthwith to all bidders, the 
deposits (bid bonds) made with their bids, except that deposit (bid bond) of the successful bidder and the 



next lowest bidder shall not be returned until a contract has been executed. 
 

Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 

The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ____ and, upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 Councilor  
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
  

WHEREUPON, such resolution was declared duly passed and adopted January 21, 2020. 
 
 



City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2020-15 
January 21, 2020  Agenda Item: 12-F 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator  

DATE: January 15, 2020 Meeting Date:  1/21/20 
 

SUBJECT: Closure of Old Hwy 2 Agenda Item: 12-F Resolution 2020-15 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Adopt Resolution to close Old Hwy 2 at the intersection of Morris Thomas and Hwy 2.  

 
BACKGROUND 
St Louis County is proposing to reconfigure the intersection of Morris Thomas Road and Hwy 2 to improve 
safety at that intersection in 2021. The reconfiguration would create a 90-degree intersection. Morris 
Thomas Road would then not be aligned with Old Hwy 2.   
 
The City Council held a public hearing on December 16, 2019 on this issue. We are presenting this 
resolution at this time in order to provide formal direction to St. Louis County. If approved, we would begin 
preparing a plan for the road closure and it would become effective at a later date.  

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
 











City Council Agenda Report  Resolution 2020-16 
January 21, 2020  Agenda Item: 12-G 
 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

TO: Mayor & City Council 
 

 
FROM:  John Mulder, City Administrator 

DATE: January 15, 2019 Meeting Date:  1/21/20 
 

SUBJECT: Sales Tax Resolution Agenda Item: 12-G Resolution 2020-16 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
Consider Resolution requesting additional sales tax authority.  

 
BACKGROUND 
We prepared a draft resolution requesting to add a half percent sales tax based on the model resolution 
provided by House Research and the Minnesota Dept of Revenue. This model resolution came through the 
League of Minnesota Cities.  
 
A number of comments need to be made: 
 

1. If the sales tax is approved by the Legislature and the voters, and the Council proceeds, the City 
will incur a significant amount of debt (exceeding the amount for the Wellness Center).  

2. The estimated revenue from the sales tax will be $1.5 million per year and the expected debt service 
will be $1.4. If sales tax does not generate enough revenue, the City may be forced to increase the 
property tax to pay off the debt.   

3. The attached description of the “regional significance of the project, including the share of the 
economic benefit to or the use of the project” is simply a draft at this time. If any City Council 
member wants to suggest language, they should do so in time that this portion could be finalized 
before the resolution is submitted to the Legislature before January 31st.   

4. Attached is a draft of the Economic Impact Study. The conclusion is the projected impact of the 
operations, games and tournaments is an increase of $2.3 million to the region’s economy. This 
does not automatically mean that there is a specific return the City as an organization either in terms 
of increased property tax capacity or sales tax revenue.  

 
 

SOURCE OF FUNDS (if applicable) 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
DRAFT Documentation of Regional Significance  
Economic Impact Study 
 



 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

 

DRAFT 1/15/2020 

 

“documentation of the regional significance of each project, including the share of the economic 
benefit to or use of each project by persons residing, or businesses located, outside of the jurisdiction” 

The focus of the Hermantown Community Recreation Initiative is to continue to improve health 
outcomes in southern St. Louis County, which still rank near the bottom for Minnesota counties. 

Driven by the early, but incredibly strong success of the Essentia Wellness Center, the belief is that an 
additional half percent sales tax can further contribute to health improvements across multiple age 
groups, varying levels of ability, and beyond a single building. The funding for this project will enhance 
health and wellness opportunities while also serving as an economic driver for Hermantown and greater 
southern St. Louis County.  

The overall initiative will have three areas of development; a pair of reimagined athletic complexes for 
youth and community hockey, baseball, and softball, as well as an improved skateboard park, and a 
comprehensive and accessible trail system connecting key Hermantown elements and extending beyond 
the city’s borders. 

Focusing first on the additions to the current Hermantown Hockey Arena, the new hockey complex 
would add an additional sheet of indoor ice, improved outdoor rinks, stronger multi-sport capabilities, 
as well as greater community access. While Hermantown is certainly well known for hockey success, 
what is less well known is what a struggle it is to provide quality ice time for all of you members of our 
community hoping to access hockey as part of their health, wellness, and enjoyment of this local 
tradition. Youth teams have limited practice opportunities, sometimes having to travel outside of St. 
Louis County to find ice time. The demands on the current Hermantown Hockey Arena, especially with 
the growth of youth girls hockey, are only growing. Additionally, many local community members – 
ranging in age from just-out-of-high-school to 50+ have a challenging time finding accessible ice time to 
stay involved in a sport they love which allows them to stay active in a way that best fits their needs and 
desires. 

The City of Hermantown and the Hermantown Area Hockey Association commissioned a regional 
economic impact study regarding recently to determine more exactly the positive impact a deeper 
investment in the area’s deepest well of tradition would bring. The results were even stronger than 
expected, as the overall benefit to the region would be an increase of more than twenty jobs, an 
increase of $700,000 annually in labor income, and an overall economic increase from a current mark of 
$4.7 million to $7 million.  

While a similar study has not been performed in relationship to baseball and softball in Hermantown, 
we know that, like hockey, these sports draw in community members beyond their school years for 
participation and maintaining an active lifestyle. The option of having a turfed field that can maximize 
the small window for spring sports, as well as allowing greater access during wet summer months, will 
increase not only tournaments, visiting teams, and some of the same positive economic impacts we 
know we will experience with hockey, but also allow for a resurgence of baseball and softball played by 
adults.  



 

Working together to serve and build our community. 

 

DRAFT 1/15/2020 

 

In both cases, the reimagining of these two sports complexes allow healthy habits to be built through a 
love of sport at a young age and continued participation in those activities to an advanced age. 
Additionally, the most utilized aspect of the Fichtner Park baseball and softball complex at this date is 
the skatepark, which would be redone and improved for continued active use.  

Finally, and possible most impactful of all, is the ability to extend accessible paths and trails to connect 
key components of Hermantown and extend to meet trail systems beyond our city’s borders. We know 
based on initial returns that the area’s largest indoor track at the newly-opened Essentia Wellness 
Center (EWC) is already receiving much greater usage than expected point. The Duluth Area Family 
YMCA’s branch inside the EWC has already reached 5,000+ members in the first few months of 
operation, which exceeds their five-year goals for the facility. While we know some of this use will move 
outdoors when the weather improves, Hermantown lacks a trail system that connects areas such as the 
location where the school and EWC are adjacent to each other, Fichtner Field, Stebner Park, and more.  

From biking and running to a more casual stroll, Hermantown’s heavily-traveled county and city roads 
do not make for nearly as safe a pathway for this type of activity. A planned trail system, aligning with 
necessary and planned infrastructure development within Hermantown, is already mapped out, but it is 
uncertain it if and when it will be able to be completed. The certainty added by the half percent sales tax 
dedication to this portion of the Community Recreation Initiative can impact the lives of every resident 
in the region, regardless of ability, as these trails will be designed to be accessible for the full spectrum 
of abilities. 

The reality of St. Louis County’s substandard comparative health outcomes is not going to improve 
without clear community investment. A significant first step has been taken – and has proven successful 
– with the Essentia Wellness Center. The early success of this facility has allowed for the confidence in 
stepping forward in requesting the additional half percent sales tax for the Community Recreation 
Initiative. While it is hard to quantify the economic gains of a healthy lifestyle, we know the debilitating 
costs – not to mention the physical impact – of obesity, diabetes, and other cumulative negative health 
effects. We are trying to maximize St. Louis County’s health through focused investment of our sales tax. 
Should this prove to be successful – as it already has initially shown with the EWC – the payback on this 
investment is immeasurable. 

In Hermantown, we have taken a stand for health. Now we want to extend that beyond a single building 
and into the lives of our youngest softball players and skateboarders, our oldest skaters and shortstops, 
and all through our region with the newest, most accessible trail and path system. As we age, we know 
you can not put a price on good health. But what you can put a number to is the investment in 
everyone’s healthy recreation opportunities. We believe that number is a half percent. 

 



























































Resolution No. 2020-16 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE AUTHORITY TO IMPOSE A LOCAL SALES TAX TO 
FUND SPECIFIC CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROVIDING REGIONAL BENEFIT, TO 
ESTABLISH THE DURATION OF THE TAX AND THE REVENUE TO BE RAISED BY 
THE TAX, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY TO ISSUE BONDS SUPPORTED BY THE 

SALES TAX REVENUE. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the city has engaged community residents and businesses and identified:  
 

A Community Recreation Initiative:  This initiative would create an addition to the existing Ice Arena 
which would have a second sheet of indoor ice, adjoining locker rooms, dry land training area, new ice plant, 
Zamboni room, lobby and connected mezzanine.  

 
This initiative would re-orient Fields 1 and 2 and rebuild them with an artificial surface. This plan 

would also include improvement in the center of the park with a new pavilion, concession area, playground, 
basketball court, and skate park. This plan would improve the parking on the eastern edge of the park near the 
old City Hall and improve pedestrian access by installing sidewalks between the fields.  

 
This initiative would include the Hermantown – Proctor Munger Trail Spur which will be a 10-foot 

wide paved regional trail that accommodates multiple non-motorized uses.  The trail will connect the Essentia 
Wellness Center to the Hermantown/Proctor border and eventually to the Munger Trail.   

 
The estimated cost to construct all of the items in the Community Recreation Initiative is $19 million 

The estimated cost with interest over 20 years at 4% is $28 million.  
 

WHEREAS, the project(s) will result in benefits to both the residents and businesses of the City of 
Hermantown and to non-resident visitors and businesses; and, 
 
WHEREAS, funding the project(s) with a local sales tax will more closely distribute the cost of the project(s) 
to the users of the facilities; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the project(s) are estimated to cost approximately $28 million and, 

 
WHEREAS, the city estimates that a local sales tax of one-half percent (0.5%) would generate $30,000,000 
over 20 years; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the city has provided documentation of the regional significance of each project, including the 
share of the economic benefit to or use of each project by persons residing, or businesses located, outside of 
the jurisdiction; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the estimated local sales tax revenue and estimated time needed to raise that amount of revenue 
for each project is as follows: 

 
- For the Community Recreation Initiative: The city will collect $1,400,000 over 20 years. 

 
WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. § 297A.99 authorizes the imposition of a general sales tax if permitted by special 
law of the Minnesota Legislature; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. § 297A.99 requires the City to pass a resolution authorizing such a local tax and to 
obtain Legislative approval prior to approval by the local voters to enact the local tax; 

 
 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the following: 



 
1. The city council supports the authority to impose a general local sales tax of one-half (0.5) percent 

for a period of 20 years to fund the aforementioned project(s); 
 

2. Upon approval of this resolution, the city will submit the adopted resolution and documentation of 
regional significance to the chairs and ranking minority members of the House and Senate Taxes 
committees for approval and passage of a special law authorizing the tax, by January 31 of the year 
that it is seeking the special law. 
 

3. Upon Legislative approval and passage of the special law authorizing the tax, the city will adopt a 
resolution accepting the new law, which will be filed with a local approval certificate to the Office of 
the Secretary of State before the following Legislative session. 
 

4. The city will put a detailed ballot question(s), which includes separate questions for each project, on 
a general election ballot for local voter approval. This will be done within two years of receiving 
legislative authority. 

 
5. If one or more ballot questions pass, the city will also pass an ordinance imposing the tax and notify 

the Commissioner of Revenue at least 90 days before the first day of the calendar quarter that the tax 
will be imposed. 

 
6. Upon completion of the aforementioned requirements, the local sales tax will commence and run for 

twenty year or until a sum sufficient to fund the voter approved project(s), including related debt costs, 
is raised, whichever comes first. 

 
 
Councilor ____ introduced the foregoing resolution and moved its adoption. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of such resolution was seconded by Councilor ____ and, upon a vote 
being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 Councilors   
 
and the following voted in opposition thereto: 
 
  
 
 WHEREUPON, such resolution has been duly passed and adopted January 21, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                


	2020-01-21 agenda
	2020-01-21 Correspondence
	2020-01-06 minutes
	2020-01-07 Work session minutes
	January 1, 2020 thru January 15, 2020
	2020-01-21 Liquor License App - The King of Creams
	2020-01 - Rezoning Ord C to C-1
	2020-01-21 ATK Rezoning
	2020-01 Maple Hill (ATK) Rezoning Ordinance

	2019-208 & 209 - The Arbours
	2020-01-21 The Arbours Executive Summary
	2020-01-21 The Arbours Final PUD and Plat
	2020-01-21 The Arbours Public Comment Responses
	The Arbours Graphics
	2019-208 The Arbours Final PUD
	RESOLUTION APPROVING FINAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR THE ARBOURS AT MAPLE GROVE DEVELOPMENT

	2019-209 Prelim & Final Plat - Arbours

	2020-12 - 2020 Sewer Utility Truck
	2020-01-21  2020 Sewer UtilityTruck
	2020-12 2020 Sewer Utility Truck
	Boyer Trucks Quote
	Truck Utilities Quote

	2020-13 - Ugstad Lift Station Pay Request 1
	2020-14 - Award Contract - Section 24 Trunk Sewer Spur
	2020-01-21 Section 24 Sewer Construction Award
	2020-14 Receiving Bid & Award Contract - Sec 24
	Resolution No. 2020-14
	SECTION 24 TRUNK SEWER SPUR IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 448


	2020-15 - Old Hwy 2 Closure
	2020-01-21 Closure Old Hwy 2
	2020-15 - Old Hwy 2 Closure

	2020-16 - Sales Tax Legislation
	2020-01-21 Sales tax legislation
	Economic Impact Study - HAHA
	2020-16 Sales Tax Legislation


